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92ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Day:- | Wednesday

Date:- | 20% August, 2025

Time:- | 3.00 P.M

Venue:- | At Omaxe Square, Plot No.14, 3" Floor, Jasola
District Centre, Jasola, New Delhi-110025




N K Textile Industries Limited

Registered office: Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14, 3" Floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025
CIN: L17299DL1983IrLC163230, Tel: +91 11 61119429
Email 1d; n ktextiles123@gmail.com, website;www. nktil.com
NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the forty second (42" ) Annual General Meeting of the
Company will be held at the Registered office of the company at Omaxe Square, Plot
No. 14, 3" Floor, Jasola District Centre, Jasola, New Delhi-110025 on 20% August ,
2025 (Wednesday) at 3.00 P.M to transact the following business

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt :-

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 March, 2025, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon:
and to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution;

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered
and adopted”

And

b, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31°" March, 2025 along with the Auditors report thereon and to consider and
if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution: '

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and the report of Auditors
thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sunil Aggarwal (DIN: 00029286) who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and, in this regard,
to consider and if thought {it, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Sunil Aggarwal (DIN: 00029286) who retires by rotation
al this meeting and being eligible, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director of the
Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

‘To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions with or without
modification(s):
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As a Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149, 150, 152, Schedule IV and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companics (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and
Regulation 17 (1C) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, Mr. Shailender Singh Rana (DIN:07679244) who was
appointed as an additional director in the Independent Category on the Board of
the Company w.e.f 27% May, 2025, and in whose respect the Company has
received recommendation from Nomination and Remuneration Committee and a
wrilten notice from a member proposing his candidature for appointment as an
Independent Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director, not
liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years
i.e. till 26" May, 2030,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company be and are
hereby authorized severally to sign, execute and file the necessary
returns/forms/documents with Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and
Haryana and to do such other acts, things and deeds as are necessary to give effect
to this resolution.”

As an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to regulation 24A of SEBI LODR Regulation , 2015
and the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 the approval of Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to appoint Vishal Arora & Associates, Company Secretaries, (Peer Review
N0:967/2020) as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five years starting
from 1st April, 2025 to 31st March, 2030,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorized severally to sign, execule and file the necessary returns/forms/documents
with Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana, and to do such other acts,
things and deeds as are necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

As a Special Resolution

Authorisation for Loans and Investments by the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursvant to section]79, 186 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with the Companies (Meetings
of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules, if any, the
approval of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of
the Company for giving loan, giving guatantee, acquisition of securities of any b
corporate/entity from time to time and/or to invest the funds of the Compa

together with loan given, puarantee given, investment made and tlmq,r;m’
already acquired by the Company, may exceed 60% of the paid up share u@ al
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rescrves and securities premium account of the Company or 100% of free reserves
and securities premium account of the Company, whichever is more provided that
the overall total amount of the funds proposed to be deployed in the manner as above
shall not exceed Rs 500 Crores (Rupees five hundred crores) or the limits prescribed
under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, whichever is hi gher.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board is authorized to sign and execute such
documents as required and to do all such acts, deeds, things as may be necessary to
give effeet 1o this resolution.”

By order of the Board
For N K Textile Industries Limited

W

Ankit Chaturvedi
Company Secretary
M.No: 67051

Place: New Delhi,
Date: 17.07.2025
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The Register of Members and Share Transfer Register of the Company shall remain closed
from Thursday, 14" August, 2025 to Wednesday, 20™ August, 2025 (both days inclusive)
for the purpose of taking record of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting,

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Scction 102 of the Act, $8-2 and Regulation 17(11)
of the Listing Regulations, as amended pertaining to the said Resolution setting out the
material facts concerning the said item and the reasons thereof is annexed hereto,

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead
of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the company. Pursuant to the provisions
of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of not
more than fifty members and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total
Share Capital of the Company. Members holding more than ten percent of the total Share
Capital of the Company may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as a proxy
for any other Member. Proxy Form, in order to be effective, shall be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not later than 48 hours before
the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy form is annexed o this Notice. Proxy forms
submitted on behalf of the limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an
appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable.

Corporate Members are requested to send, a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companics Act, 2013 authorising their representative to
attend the AGM on their behalf and vote through remote e-voting. The Resolution shatl be
sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to

kapahiassociates@yahoo.com or to the Company at p.ktextiles123@gmail.com

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (the SEBI) has mandated that securitics of listed
companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form w.e.f. 1st April, 2019,
Accordingly, the Company and its Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA) have stopped
acceptmg any fresh lodgment of transfer of shares in physical form. Members holding shares
in physical form arc advised 1o avail the facility of dematerialization.

Pursuant to SEBI circular dated 25th January, 2022, securities of the Company shall be
issued in dematerialized form only while processing service requests in relation to issue of
duplicate securities certificate, renewal / exchange of securities certificate, endorsement,
sub-division / splitting of securities certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/folios,
transmission and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service
requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR — 4, the format of which is
available on the Company’s website and on the website of the Company’s Registrar and
Transfer Agents ~Mas Services Limited. It may be noted that any service request can he
processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant.

Norms for furnishing of PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomination;

Pursuant to SEBI Circular no.SEBI/HQ/MIRSD/MIRSDPoD-1/P/ CIR/2023/37 dated
March 16, 2023, issued in supersession of earlier circulars issued by SEBI bearing nos.
SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMB /P/CIR/2021/655 and SEBI/HO/MIRSD! MIRSD
RTAMB/ P/CIR/2021/687 dated November 3, 2021 and December 14, 2021, respectively,
SEBI has mandated all listed companies to record PAN, Nomination, Contact details, Bank
Alc details and Specimen signawre for their corresponding folio numbers of holders of
physical securities. The folios wherein any one of the cited documents/details is not
available on or after October 1, 2023, shall be frozen by the RTA. The securitics in the
frozen folios shall be eligible;

* To lodge any grievance or avail of any service, only after furnishing t}r.a
documents / detuils as mentioned above;
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* To receive any payment including dividend, interest or redemption amount (which would
be only through electronic mode) only after they comply with the above stated requirements.
The forms for updation of PAN, KYC, bank details and Nomination viz., Forms ISR-1,
[SR-2, I8R-3, SH-13 and the said SEBI circular are available on our website
http://www.nktil.com/Communication-to-Investor/,

In view of the above, we urge Members holding shares in physical form to submit
the required forms along with the supporting documents at the earliest.

Further, Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to ensure that
their PAN is linked to Aadhaar to avoid freezing of folios. Such frozen folios shall
be referred by RTA/Company (o the administering authority under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and/or Prevention of Money Laundering Act,
2002, after December 31, 2025

As per the provisions of the Act and applicable SEBI Circular, Members holding shares in
physical form may file nomination in the prescribed Form $H-13 with Mas Services Limited
or make changes to their nomination details through Form SH-14 and Form ISR-3. In respect
of shares held in dematerialised form, the nomination form may be filed with the respective
DPs.  The relevant forms arc available on the company websitc at
hitp://www.nktil.com/Communication-to-Investor/

Members holding shares in dematerialized mode are requested to intimate all changes
pertaining to their name, address, bank details, ECS mandate, nominations, power of
attorney, email 1D, ete, to their depository participants only and not to the Company or its
RTA. The said intimation will be automatically reflected in the Company’s records.

Shareholders may note that the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended by the Finance Act,
2020, mandates that dividends paid or distributed by a Company afler 1st April, 2020 shall
be taxable in the hands of the Sharcholders. The Company shall therefore be required to
deduct Tax at Source (TDS) at the time of making the final dividend. In order to enable us
to determine the appropriate TDS rate as applicable, Members are requested to submit the
documents in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI™) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market, Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore requested to submit the PAN to their
Depository Participant(s) with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company’s RTA.

In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, the shareholders of the Company may
nominate a person on whom the shares held by him/them shall vest in the event of his/their
death. Shareholders desirous of availing this facility may submit nomination in form SH-
13.

- Members may contact M/s. MAS SERVICES LIMITED, the Registrars & Transfor Agents

(RTA} for any investor related services , The address and other contaet details of RTA are as
under;

MAS SERVICES LIMITED

Address: T-34, 2" Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-I1, New Delhi-110020

Tel, No.:011-26387281, 82, 83

Fax Mo.: 011-26387384
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The Statement of Profit and Loss for the financial year ended 3 1st March, 2025, the Balance
Sheet as at that date, the Auditors® Report, the Directors® Report and all other documents
annexed or attached thereto, are available for inspection by Members at the Registered
Office of the Company between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. on working days up (o the date
of this AGM. Members may also visit the Company's website www.nktil.com for viewing
various [inancial information including the quarterly results and annual report of the
Company.

. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and the SEBI circular dated 12th May, 2020, 15th

January, 2021 and 13th May, 2022. Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-
25 is being sent only through clectronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/ Depositorics. Members may note that the Notice and the
Annual Report for 2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s website
www.nktil.com and websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e Metropolitan Stock Exchange of
India Limited at www.mset.in, Calcutta Stock Exchange and also on the website of Mas
Services Limited at investor@massery.com.

- The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of Auditors for ratification by

members at every AGM is done away with vide notification dated 7th May, 2018 issued by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Accordingly, no resolution is proposed for ratification of
appointment of Auditors, who were re-appointed in the AGM held on 30th September, 2022
for a period of five years.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised 1o exercise due diligence and
notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible.
Members are also advised to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic
statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned DP and holdings should be
verified from time to time.

. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only the Member whose name appears first

will be entitled to vote.

Vide its Circular No, CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013 dated 21st March, 2013, the SEBI has
instructed all the companies to use electronic mode of payment o the investors. Companies
whose securities are listed on Stock Exchanges are directed to use, either directly or through
their RTA & STA, any Reserve Bank of India approved electronic mode of payment such
as ECS [LECS (Local ECS) / RECS (Regional ECS) / NECS (National ECS)], NEFT cte.

- Members, who have not yet submitted their requisite bank account details, are once again

requested to kindly provide these details by quoting their reference folio number(s) if shares
are held in physical form, If shares are held in dematerialized form, Members may kindly
provide the requisite bank account details to their Depository Participant to ensure that
dividend payment is correctly credited to their account.

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their
e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars,
ele. from the Company electronically,

. Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report

to the meeting,

Yoting through electronic means

I compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the
St

Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Clause 447




is pleased to provide its members facility 1o exercise their right to vote at the Annual General
Meeting (ACGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting
Services, The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronie voting system
from a place other than venue of the AGM (*remote e~voting™) will be provided by National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL),

B. The facility for voting through ballot paper shail be made available at the AGM and the
members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able
to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

C. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend
the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vole again.

D. The remote e-voting period commences on Sunday, August 17" August, 2025 (09:00 am)
and ¢nds on Tuesday, 19" August , 2025 (05:00 pm). During this period the members of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-
off date of I3" August, 2025 (Wednesday) may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The
remote ¢-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter, Once the vote on
a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

E. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.c 13™ August, 2025.A person, whose
name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility
of voting, either through remote e-voting or voting at the AGM through poll papers.

REMOTE E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS:
The procedure with respect to Remote e-voting is provided below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for ¢-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in

demat mode
In terms of SERF circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual sharehoiders holding securities in demat mode are allowed fo vote
through their demat account maintained with Deposilories and Depository Participants.
Sharcholders arc advised to update their mobile nuinber and email Id in their demat accounts
in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securitics in demat mode is given below:

Type of sharcholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of
holding securities in demat NSDL  Viz, https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a
mode with NSDL. Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services

home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under




able to see e-Voting services under Value added
services, Click on “Access to e-Voting” under c-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e~
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period.

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option
to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.
Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices,nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web
browser by typing the [ollowing URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of -
Voting system is launched, ¢lick on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. Affer
successful authentication, you will be redirected to
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or ¢-Voting service
provider i.e, NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period.

Sharcholders/Members can also download NSDL
Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the
QR code mentioned below for seamless voting
experience,

| NSDL Mobile App is available on

! " AppStore B Google Play

Individual Sharcholders
holding securities tn demat
mode with CDSL,

Users who have opted for CDSL. Easi / Easiest facility,
can login through their existing user id and password.
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
without any further aullmmgatlolz :lt \h&*ﬂﬂ@ to login

Easi / Lasu..st are mquealcd to,f‘,,‘\‘_ vigit” Cﬁ%\ website
i/ login. 1%01\1 New

ST i




System Myeusi Tab and then user your existing my easi
username & password.
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After successful login the Fast / Easiest user will be
able {o see the e-Voting option for eligible companies
where the evoting is in progress as pet the information
provided by company. On clicking the evoting option.
the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-
Voting service provider for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voling period. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service
providers” website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Fasi/Easiest, option to
register  is  available at  CDSL  website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System
Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting
page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN
No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com bome page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered
Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account.
After successful authentication, user will be able to see
the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and
also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders
{(holding securities in
demat mode) login through
their depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
account through your Depository Participant registered with
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will
be able to see e-Voling option. Click on e-Voting option, you
will be redirccied to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
Le. NSDL and you will be redirected 1o e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting petiod.

Imporiant note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password arc advised
to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned

website.

Helpdesk for Individual Sharcholders holding securities in demat mode for any
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL,

|‘_Login type

| Helpdesk details PASSEELNN

Wl -
.




Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demal mode with
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
NSDL  helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 -
2499 7000

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
CDSI.

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
CDSL  helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cedslindia.com or contact at toll free

no. 1800 22 55 33

B) Login Method for sharcholders other than Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and sharcholders holding securities in physical mode,

-in to NSDI, e-Voting wehsite?

How to Lo

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
or on a mobile,

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login™
which is available under *Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDI. eservices Le. IDEAS, you can
log-in at https.//eservices.nsdl.cam/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you
log-in to NSDL eservices afier using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting
and you can proceed (o Step 2 i.e. Cast your vole electronically,

Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. | Your User ID is:
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or
Physical

a} For Members who hold shares
in dermat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
Client ID

For example if your DP ID is
IN300*** and Client I ig [ 2% %%k
then your user ID is
INBOO*** 12******.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary 1) is
[ 2%k KAk kdd R hen your user ID
5 12 bbb o b o

EVEN Number followed by Folio
Number registered with the company
For example if folio number is Q0T %***
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is

1014560071 %%+
nAU s
&?‘\“’%}*@:
ey ‘ il

Y .{»nl,\l\;u".“\_m,
u'\‘NL‘:W A

b) For Members who hold shares
in demat account with CDSL..

¢} For Members holding shares in
Physical Form.

5, Password details for sharcholders other than Individual sharehol
below:

1o



a) Ifyouare already repistered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing
password to login and cast your vote.

b) Ifyou are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need
to retrieve the ‘initial password” which was communicated to you. Once
you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial
password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

¢) How (o retrieve your ‘initial password'?

(i) If your cmail ID is registered in your demat account or with the
company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on
your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your
mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file.
Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8
digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for
CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form.
The .pdf file contains your “User II)” and your ‘initial password’.

(i)  Hyour email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned
below in process for those sharceholders whose email ids are
not registered

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the * Initial password” or
have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(Tf you are holding shares in your
demal account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoling.nsdl.com.

b} Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical
mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

¢) If you are still unable lo get the password by aforesaid two options, you
can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address
ete.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for
casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by
selecting on the check box,

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login™ button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step. 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDI, e-Voting system?
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies
“EVEN™ in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the
remote e-Voting period.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4, Cast your vote by seclecting appropriale options ie. assent or
verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast y
click on “Submit” and also “Confirm™ when prompted.




5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the voles cast by you by clicking on the print
option on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote.

Inshtutlonal shareholders (1.:—:. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are
required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc, with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail
to kapahiassociates@yahoo.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person
and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting
website will be disabled upon five unsucccqqfu] attempts to kcy in tho correct

Duml;g{{!jgssword?” or “,Physncal User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password,

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders availahle at the
download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990
and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request at evotingnsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the
depositories for procuring user id and password and registration of ¢ mail ids for
e-voting for the resolutions sct out in this notice:

I. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and baclk), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self atlested scanned copy of Aadhar Card)
by ernail to n.ktextiles123@gmail.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID +
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated
Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (sell
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (n.ktextiles123@gmail.com). If you are an
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer

to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.c.Login method for e-Voting for

Individual shareholders holding sccurities in demat mode.

3. Altcmauvcly shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co. m for
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mer
documents.




ili.

vi.

. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by

Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and
email 1D correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

Other Instructions:
Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company
afler dispatch of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 13" August, 2025

MAS Services Limited. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-
voling then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote.

A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote
e-voting but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.

Mr. Surrinder Kishore Kapahi (CP No. 1118), Proprictor Kapahi and Associates, Company
Seerctartes has been appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing lacility to the members of
the Company to scrutinize the voting (i.e. remote e-voting and physical voting at the
meeting) process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting
is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot Paper” for all
those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the
remote e-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes
cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shatl make,
not later than two working days from the conclusion of the AGM, a Consolidated
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a
person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result
of the voting forthwith,

The Results declared along with the report of the Serutinizer shall be placed on the website
of the Company www.nktil.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the
declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing and
communicated to the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited (formerly known as
MCX Stock Exchange Limited) and Caleutta Stock Exchange.

By order of the Board
For N K Textile Industries Limited

e

Ankit Chaturvedi
Company Secrctary
M.No: 67051

Place: New Delhi,
Date; 17,07.2025




N K Textile Industries Limited

Registered office: Omaxe Square, Plot No, 14, 3" Floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delthi-110025
CIN: L17299DL1983PLC163230, Tel: +91 11 61119429
Email 1d: n.ktextiles123@gmail.com, website:www.nktil.com
EXPALNATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
[tem No. 3

As per the provisions of Section 149 Schedule 1V and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 | the Independent Directors shall be appointed for not more
than (wo consecutive terms of five years each and shall not be liable to retire by rotation,
Further, Regulation 17 (1C) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, states that the listed entity shall ensure that approval of shareholders
for appointment or re-appointment of a person on the Board of Directors or as a manager
i3 taken at the next general meeting or within a time period of three months from the
date of appointment, whichever is earlicr. Theretore, the consent of the Members by way
of Special Resolution is sought for the appointment of Mr. Shailender Singh Rana
(DIN:07679244) as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of five years
i.e, upto 26™ May, 2030.

The Board of Directors of the Company at the meeting held on 27™ May, 2025, on the
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee appointed Mr,
Shailender Singh Rana as an Additional Director and shall hold office upto the date of
ensuing AGM. The Board recommended for the approval of the Members, the
appointment of Mr. Shailender Singh Rana (DIN: 07679244) as an Independent Director
of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years i.e. till 26" May,
2030 in terms of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act’) and relevant regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, as set out in the resolution relating to the appointment. In the opinion
of the Board, Mr. Shailender Singh Rana fulfills the criteria specified under Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for being appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company.

Requisite Notice under Section 160 of the Act proposing the appointment of Mr,
Shailender Singh Rana has been received by the Company and consent have been filed
by Mr. Rana pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has
also received decluration from Mr, Shailender Singh Rana to the effect that he meets the
criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Rules framed
thereunder and relevant regulation of the SEBI (L.ODR) Regulations, 2015.

The terms and conditions of his appointment shall be open for inspection by the
Members at the Registered Qffice of the Company during the normal business hours on
any working day and will also be kept open at the venue of the AGM till the conclusion
of the AGM.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatiye S,
except Mr, Shailender Singh Rana is concerned or interested in the Resolution, 02l

I k g e



The Board recommends the special resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for
your approval.

Brief profile of Mr. Shailender Singh Rana is as follows:

Name of the Ditector Mr, Shailender Singh Rana

Director Identification | 07679244

Number

Date of joining the Board | 27.05,2025

Qualification Cost and Work Management Accountant (CMA)

Profile of the Director Mr. Shaifender 8ingh Rana is a Finance Professional with

more than 20 years of experience in the field of Costing
and Finance. Mr. Rana is a Qualified Cost and Work
Management Accountant (CMA) and in the opinion of the
Members, his expertise will bring more diversity and
experience on the Board of the Company.

Directorship  in  other | 1. Chase Investments Limited

companies 2. Friendly Reality Projects Limited
Number of Shares held in NIL
Company

Age 50 years

For N K Textile Industries Lintited

Ankit €haturyvedi
Company Secretary
M.No: 67051

Place: New Delhi,
Date: 17.07.2025




N K Textile Industries Limited

Registered office: Omaxe Square, Plot No, 14, 3" Floor, Jasola Distriet Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025 ‘
CIN: L17299DL1983P1.C163230, Tel: +91 11 61119429
Email Id: n.ktextiles123@gmail.com, website;www.nktil.com
EXPALNATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Ttem No. 4

Regulation 24A of SEBI LODR Regulation , 2015 states that every listed entity and its
material unlisted subsidiaries incorporated in India shall undertake Secretarial Audit by
a Secretarial Auditor who shall be a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary and shall annex
a Secretarial Audit Report with the annual report of the listed entity. Further, the
appointment of secretarial auditor shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholder of
the Company in its Annual General Meeting.

In view of above provision, the Board recommended the name of M/s Vishal Arora &
Associates, Company Seccretaries, (Peer Review No:967/2020) to be appointed as a
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a tetm of five years starting from st April, 2025
to 31st March, 2030, which requires approval of the Sharcholders of the Company by
way of ordinary resolution.

Brief Profile of M/s Vishal Arora & Associates is as follows:-

M/s Vishal Arora & Associates, Company Secrctaries in practice is a peer reviewed
practicing Company Secretary. He is a versatile analytical and result oriental corporate
professional with hands on experience over two decades with an attitude of achicving
positive results in adverse and complex situations. He has rich and extensive working
experience in the corporate line, with prominent corporate groups like Listed and closely
held public limited and Private Limited Companies.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out at Item No, 4 of the Notice for your
approval.

For N K Textile Industries Limited

¥
-

Ankit Chaturvedi
Company Secretary
M.No: 67051
Place: New Dielhi,
Date: 17.07.2025




N K Textile Industries Limited

Registered office: Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14, 3" Floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025
CIN: L17299DL1983PLC163230, Tel: +91 11 61119429
Email 1d: n.ktextiles123@gmail.com, website:www.nktil.com
EXPALNATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Iicm No. 5:

The provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires prior approval of
the Sharcholders to give any loan, guarantee or acquire securilies of any other hody
corporate, in excess of 60% of its paid up share capital, free reserves, and securities
premium account or 100% of free reserves and securities premium account, whichever
is morc. Keeping in view the aforesaid requirement and also the Company’s future plan
of action 1o invest in shares/securities ele, the Board of Directors propose to oblain
consent from sharcholders by a special resolution for item no.S for authorizing the
Board of Directors to give any loan, guarantee or acquire securities from time to time
on behalfl of the Company not exceeding 500 crores or the limits as prescribed under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, whichever is higher.

None of the Directors of the Company or their relatives is / are concerned or interested
in the said Resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. § of the
Notice for approval by the Members.

For N K Textile Industries Limited

Ankit Chaturvedi
Company Secretary
M.No: 67051

Place: New Delhi,
Date: 17.07.2025




N K Textile Industries Limited
Registered office: Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14, 3" Floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025
CIN: L17299DL1983PLC163230, Tel: +91 11 61119429

Email Id: n. ktextiles123@gmail.com, website:www.nktil.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
42 Annual General Meeting to be held on 20th August, 2025

Name of the Attending Member (in
Block Letlers)

Regd. Folio No/ *DP ID/* Client I}

No, of Equity Shares held

Name of the Shareholder(s)

Joint Holder 1

Joint Holder 2
1. I/We hereby record my / our presence at the 42nd Annual General Meeting of
the members of the Company held on 20t August, 2025 at 3.00 P.M., al  the Registered
office of the Company at Omaxe Square, Plot no. 14, 3« floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025 .

2. Signature of the Sharehalder/Proxy Present

3. Shareholder/Proxy holder wishing to attend the meeling must bring the
Attendance Slip to the meeting and handover at the entrance duly signed.

4, Shareholder/Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting may bring his/her

copy of the Annual Report for reference at the meeting.

Note: PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTENDANCE SLIP TO
THE MEETING.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

E Voting Event Number User ID) Password
(EVEN)

Note: Please read the instructions provided in Notice dated 17 July, 2025 of the Annual
General Meeting. The Voling period starts from 9.00 a.m. on Sunday, August 17, 2025
and ends at 5,00 p.m. on Tuesday, August 20", 2025. The voting module shall be
disabled by NSDL, for voting thereafler.



N K Textile Industries Limited

Registered office: Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14, 3 Floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025
CIN: L17299DL1983PLC163230, Tel: +91 11 61119429

Email 1d: n.ktextiles123@gmail.com, website:www.nktil.com

PROXY FORM
[Mursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 1903) of the Cotmpanics (Managenent and Administeation)

Rutes, 2014]
Name of the Member(s)
Registered addrass
Ermail IO ot
Folio N/ Client ID
DR ID MNo. of Shares 7
I/We, baing the member(s) of..........cooeiiis shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint;
1.  Namg
Address Signature
Errrail 1D N
Or failing him/her
2. Name Signature
Address
Ernail ID
Or failing hirm/her
3. Name
Address Signature
Email 1D ]

As myf our proxy to attend and vote {an a poll) for me / us and on my / our bahaif at the 42" Annual General Maeting
of the Company, te be held on Wadnesday, 20" August, 2025 at 3.00 P.M. at tha registered offlce of the Company at
Omaxe Square, Plot Ne.14, 34 Fleer, Jasala District Centre, Jazcla, New Dathi-110025 and at any adjournment tharegf
in raspact of such resclutions a8 are indlcated below:

Resolution Rasolutions For* Against*
No,

Ordinary Business

1. To raceive, consider and adopt:

i. the Audited Standalore Financlal Statements of the Company
for the Fimancial Year ended 31st March, 2025, the reports of
the Beard of Directors and Auditors thereon; and
the Audited Cansolidatad Financial Statements of tha Company
for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025

2, To appeint a Director in place of Mr. Sunil Aggarwal (DIN: 00025288
who retires by rotation and being eligibla, offers himself for re-
appointrient,

Special Business

3, To appoint Mr. Shailender Singh Rana (DIN:O7679244) as an
Independent Director, who was appeinted as an additional director
in the Independent Category on the Board of the Company w.e.f 27th
May, 2025 for & term of 5 (five) consecutive years i.e. till 26th May,
2030.




L.

L]

4, To appoint Vishal Arora & Associates, Company Secretanes, (Feer
Review Ne:967/2020) as a Secretarlal Auditor of the Company for a
term of five years starting from 15t Aprll, 2025 to 315t March, 2030,

A. Authorisation for Loans and invastmeants by the Company upto a lirmit
of Rs. 500 erore in accordance with the provislons of aection 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013

Affix

Slgned this ——-- day ofermmmrmarmmannnces 2025 SIgNatLIre of MEMDEF-sssmemmseresimines Rg;f;mn:e

Signature of Proxy

Note:

This form of proxy in erder to be effective should e duly completed and deposited al the Registered Qiee of the
company, not less than 48 houry before the commencement of the Meeting,

A person ¢an act as a proxy on behalf of Members, not exceeding {ifly, and holding in the aggregate not more than
104 of the tatal share Capital of'the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than 10% of the totad
share capital of the Company carrying voling  Rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall
not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

* [t is optional 10 put a Y™ in the appropriate colwmn against the resolution indicated in the box. If you leave the
*For® ar *Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner
a3 he/ she deems appropriate.



N K Textile Industries Limited

Registered officc: Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14, 3™ Floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Dclhi-110025
CIN: L17299D1.1983PL.C163230, Tel: +91 11 61119429

Email Id: n.ktextiles123@gmail.com, website: www.nktil.com

DIRECTORS’' REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 42™ Annual Report together with the
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025,

1. Financial Highlights

The Company earned a profit (before tax) of Rs. 1.85 lacs as against a profit of
Rs. 0.49 lacs in the previous year. The consolidated profit (before tax) during
the year under review was Rs.20228,95 lacs as against a profit of Rs, 7284.83
lacs in the previous year.

2. State of Company’s affair

During the year under review, the income of the Company by way of interest
from bank is Rs.6.57 lacs as against Rs. 6.02 lacs in the previous year. The
income from other source is Rs. 0.02 lacs as against Rs.0.05 lacs in the previous
year.

3. Dividend

In order to conserve the resources for future requirements, no dividend is
proposed to be declared during the year under review.

4. RBIl Guidelines

The Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) in terms of Notification No.
DNBR.PD. 003/03.10.118/2016-17 dated August, 25, 2016 issued by Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) as updated by subsequent notifications issued from time to
time. As per the recent direction issued by RBI relating to CICs: ‘a CIC (a) with
an asset size of less than 100 crore, irrespective of whether accessing public
funds or not and (b) with an asset size of ¥100 crore and above and not
accessing public funds are not required to register themselves with the RBI
under Section 45IA of the RBlI Act, 1934 in terms of notification No.
DNBS.PD.221/CGM (US) 2011 dated January 5, 2011, and will be termed as
Unregistered CICs'. The Company falls under the definition of ‘Unregisterad
CIC’ hence, not required to get itself registered with RBI. The Company has
complied with all the guidelines as applicable on CIC.

5. Management Analysis and Review

T
The Company has deployed its surplus fund in the financial assets in the/Sharé™ ™%

capital of group companies and hence falls under the definition of C|C§-§;é,’9$5{m} A
R A LRI




RBI guidelines. The management has done the review and analysis on all the
applicable guidelines on CIC and the company has complied with the same.

6. Transfer to Reserves

As the Company became CIC, the requirement relating to statutory reserve is
not applicable on the Company.

7. Detailed performance and financial position of Subsidiary/Joint
Venture/ Associate Companies

A report on the performance and financial position of the Subsidiaries and
Associate Company as per the Companies Act, 2013 is provided as Annexure
‘A’. There is no joint venture of the Company. The Company has one material
Subsidiary namely ‘Rajputana Developers Limited' (RDL) and it has complied
with all the applicable provisions as applicable to material Subsidiary. The
Company has one Associate Company namely * HMA Udyog Private Limited’.

8. Extract of Annual Return

As required under Section 134(3) (a) and section 92(3) of the Act, the Annual
Return has been uploaded on the Company’s website and can be accessed at
www.nktil.com.Further, the details forming part of the extract of Annual Return
in form MGT- 9, as required under Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
included in this report as per Annexure ‘B’

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company are available on our website.

9. Compliance relating to Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with the applicable secretarial standards issued
by Institute of Companies Secretaries of India for the Financial Year 2024-25.

10. Corporate Governance

The Company is listed with Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India limited
(formerly known as MCX Stock Exchange limited) and Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited. The clauses of the Corporate Governance became applicable on the
Company from the financial year 2020-21 upon increase in the net- worth of
the Company due to adoption of IND AS for preparation of financial statements.
The filing of Corporate Governance report became applicable on the Company
for the quarter ended on 31.12.2020 onwards.

The Company is committed to maximise the value for its stakeholders by
adopting the principles of good Corporate Governance in line with the provisions
of law and particularly those stipulated in the Listing Regulations. The certlflc:ate
from the practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of the etRga

of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulatmns /
as per Annexure C,




The certificate from Mr. Gopal Sharma, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company in relation to the financial statements
for the year along with declaration by the CEQ regarding compliance with the
code of business conduct of the Cormpany by the directors and the members of
the senior management team of the Company during the year, were submitted
to and taken note of by the Board on 27.05,2025.

11. Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of
the Company, Mr. Sunil Aggarwal (DIN: 00029286) Director of the Company
retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible
offer himself of re-appointment.

Further, Mr. Surindra Kapoor, CFO & CEO of the Company died on 11" June,
2024 and in order to fill the vacancy, the company had appointed Mr. Gopal
Sharma as the new CEQ & CFO of the Company w.e.f 13t August, 2024,

During the year under review, Mr. Rajeev Kapoor (DIN:03155896) was
appointed as an Additional Director in the independent category of the
Company w.e.f 13" August, 2024 and the approval of the Shareholders for his
appointment as an Independent Director for a term of five consecutive years
was sought on 30" September, 2024 at the 41t Annual General Meeting of the
Company. But due to his sad and untimely demise on 30" April, 2025, the
position of Independent director vacated and new appoiniment was required
to be filled within 3 months or next board meeting whichever is earlier. The
Company appointed Mr. Shailender Singh Rana (DIN: 07679244) as additional
director in the independent category on the Board of the Company w.e.f 27t
May, 2025. As per the provisions of regulation 17(1) (C) the appointment of
director on the Board of the Company is required to be approved by the
Shareholders at the next General Meeting or within a period of three months
from the date of appointment whichever is earlier. In view of the above
compliance, the Company is taking approval of the shareholders for
appointment of Mr. Shailender Singh Rana as an Independent Director for a
consecutive term of five years i.e, from 27" May, 2025 to 26t May, 2030 at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting Scheduled to be held on 20t August, 2025,

Further, Mr. Pumit Kumar Chellaramani (DIN: 05147900) was appointed as an
additional director in the independent category and Ms. Anshu Maheshwari
(DIN: 10830308) was appointed as an additional director on the Board of the
Company w.e.f 7" November, 2024.In compliance with Regulation 17 (1) (C) the
appointment of Mr. Pumit Kumar Chellaramani and Ms, Anshu Maheshwari is
required to be approved by the Shareholders at the next General Meeting or
within a period of three months from the date of appointment whichever is earlier.
In view of the above compliance, the Company held an Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting (EGM) on 30" January, 2025 and the approval of Shareholders was
granted for the appointment of Mr. Pumit Kumar Chellaramani as an
Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years
i.e. from 7th November, 2024 tili 6th November, 2029, The approval for
appointment of Ms. Anshu Maheshwari as a Non Executive Director was also
obtained from the Shareholders of the Company at the said EGM.
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During the year under review, Mrs. Beenu Agarwal (DIN:00056062) an
Independent Director of the Company resigned from the directorship of the
Company w.e.f 7th November, 2024. Further, Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta
(DIN:00027728), a Non Executive Director of the Company resigned from the
directorship of the Company w.e.f 14th November, 2024

Apart from the above, there has been no change in the Director of the Company
during the year under review. The Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Director
is attached as per Annexure ‘D',

12. Declaration given by Independent Director

The Company had initially received declaration from Mr. Pumit Kumar
Chellaramani ((DIN: 05147900) and Mr. Rajeev Kapoor (DIN:03155896),
Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet with the criteria
of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013.But due to the sad demise of Mr. Kapoor, the vacancy of
Independent director was filled by the Board by appointing Mr. Shailender Singh
Rana (DIN: 07679244) as additional director in the independent category w.e.f
27" May, 2025 and the Company has received a declaration from him confirming
that he meets with the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section
(6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. ‘

13.Meeting of Independent Director:

The Meeting of the Independent Director of the Company was held on 280
March, 2025 for the F.Y 2024-25.

14. Annual Performance Evaluation

The Company in consultation with Nomination and Remuneration Committee
has carried out the performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board,
Committees and other individual Directors. Pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, a stryctured questionnaire was prepared after taking into
consideration of the various aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of
the Board and its committees, cuiture, execution and performance of specific
duties, obligations and governance.

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors was completed. The
performance evaluation of the other Board Members was carried out by the
Independent Directors. The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with
the evaluation process.

15. Number of Meetings of the Board
The details of the number of meetings of the Board held during the Financial
Year 2024-25 are as follows:




S. No. Date of Meeting Name of Directors who attended the
meeting

30.04.2024 Mr. Balbir Singh, Mr. Sunii Aggarwal , Mr. |
1 Sanjay Kumar Gupta and Mrs. Beenu
Agarwal

30.05.2024 Mr. Balbir Singh, Mr. Sunil Aggarwal , Mr.
2 Sanjay Kumar Gupta and Mrs. Beenu
Agarwal

13.08.2024 Mr. Balbir Singh, Mr. Sunil Aggarwal , Mr.
3 Sanjay Kumar Gupta, Mr. Rajeev Kapoor,
and Mrs. Beenu Agarwal

07.11.2024 Mr. Balbir Singh, Mr. Sunil Aggarwal , Mr.
4 Rajeev Kapoor, Mr. Pumit Kumar
Chellaramani and Ms. Anshu
Maheshwari
14.11.2024 Mr. Balbir Singh, Mr. Sunil Aggarwal , Mr.
5 Rajeev Kapoor, Mr. Pumit Kumar
Chellaramani and Ms. Anshu
Maheshwari
30.12.2024 Mr. Balbir Singh, Mr. Sunil Aggarwal , Mr.
6 Rajeev Kapoor, Mr. Pumit Kumar
Chellaramani and Ms, Anshu
Maheshwari ‘
04.02.2025 Mr. Balbir Singh, Mr. Sunil Aggarwal , Mr.
7 Rajeev Kapoor, Mr. Pumit Kumar
Chellaramani and Ms. Anshuy
Maheshwari

16.Deposits
The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year under
review,

17.Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments by Company

Details of Investments is given in the notes to Financial Statements. (Please
refer Note 4 of the Financial Statement). No guarantee was given by the
company during the Financial Year 2024-25.




18. Related Party Transactions

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for their
approval. The transactions with the related parties are done atarm’s length basis
in the ordinary course of business. There are no transactions with related party
during the year under review except payment of salary to Key Managerial
Personnel and payment of conveyance to Non — Executive director as given in
Note No. 17 of Balance Sheet. Hence, form AOC-2 has not been furnished.

19.Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formulated a whistle blower policy to report genuine concerns
or grievances and the said policy s available on the Company's website
www nktil.com. ‘

20. Audit Committee

The composition of audit committee of the Company is as follows:

S.No. | Name of Member Designation
1. Mrs. Beenu Agarwal Chairman (Independent Director)
(ceased w.e.f 7th November, 2024)
2 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta Member (Independent Director)
(ceased w.e.f 14" November, 2024)
3 Mr. Sunil Aggarwal Member
4 Mr. Rajeev Kapoor Chairman (Independent Director)

Appointed w.e.f 14" November,
2024 and ceased w.e.f 30" April,
20256 due to death

5 Mr. Pumit Kumar Chellaramani | Member (Independent Director)
Appointed w.ef 14t November,
2024

6 Mr. Shailender Singh Rana Chairman (Independent Director)

Appointed w.e.f 271" May, 2025

The details regarding number of meetings held by Audit Committee during the
year are as follows:

Date of Meeting Name of Directors who attended the
S. No. meeting
30.05.2024 Mrs. Beenu Agarwal, Mr. Sunil
1 Aggarwal and Mr. Sanjay Kumar
Gupta
13.08.2024 Mrs. Beenu Agarwal, Mr. Sunil —
3 Aggarwal and Mr. Sanjay Kumar,~gastige
Gupta K;f ~
\,"



14.11.2024 Mr. Rajeev Kapoor, Mr. Sunil

4 Aggarwal and Mr. Pumit Kumar
Cheilaramani

04.02.2025 Mr. Rajeev Kapoor, Mr. Sunil

5 Aggarwal and Mr. Pumit Kumar
Chellaramani

The Board has accepted all the recommendations proposed by audit committee
during the financial year.

21. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The composition of Nomination and Remuneration committee of the Company

is as follows:

S. No. Name of Member Designation

1. Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta Chairman  (independent Director)
{ceased w.e.f 7" November, 2024)

2. Mrs. Beenu Agarwal Member (Independent Director)
(ceased w.e.f 7'" November, 2024)

3. Mr. Sunil Aggarwal Member  (ceased wef 7t
November, 2024)

4, Mr. Pumit Kumar Chellaramani | Member (Independent Director)
(Appointed w.ef 7" November,
2024)

5. Ms. Anshu Maheshwari Chairman  (Appointed w.ef 7t
November, 2024)

6 Mr. Rajeev Kapoor Member (independent Director)
(Appointed w.ef 7" November,
2024} (ceased w.e.f 30" April, 2025
due to death)

7 Mr. Shailender Singh Rana Member (Independent Director)
(Appointed w.e.f 27" May, 2025)

The details regarding number of meetings held by Nomination and
Remuneration Committee during the year are as follows:

8. No. Date of Meeting | Name of Directors who attended the meeting
13.08.2024 Mr. Sunit Aggarwal and Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta
1
07.11.2024 Mr. Rajeev Kapoor, Mr. Pumit Kumar
2 Chellaramani, Ms. Anshu Maheshwari
14.11.2024 Mr. Rajeev Kapoor, Mr. Pumit
3 Chellaramani, Ms. Anshu Maheshwari /




30.12.2024 Mr.  Rajeev Kapoor, Mr. Pumit Kumar
4 Chellaramani, Ms. Anshu Mahashwari

22.Remuneration and Nomination Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a Remuneration and
Nomination Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior
Management and their remuneration.

The policy formulated by nomination and remuneration committee is available
on the Company's website: www.nktil.com.

23. Stakehoider Relationship Committee

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee was constituted by the Company as
per the provision of Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 pursuant
to the applicability of Corporate Governance on the Company.

The composition of Stakeholder Relationship committee of the Company is as

follows:
S. No. Name of Member Designation
1. Mrs. Beenu Agarwal Chairman (Independent Director)
| (Ceased w.e.f 14.11.2024)

2. Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta Member (Independent Director)
(Ceased w.e.f 14.11.2024)

3. Mr. Balbir Singh Chairman (Non-Executive Director)
(Appointed w.e.f 14.11.2024)

4, Mr. Rajeev Kapoor Member (Appointed w.e.f 14.11.2024

' and ceased w.e.f 30.04.2025 due to

death)

5. Pumit Kumar Chellaramani Member (Appointed w.e.f
14.11.2024)

6. Shailender Singh Rana Member (Appointed w.e.f
27.05.2025)

The detail regarding number of meetings held by Stakeholder Relationship
Committee during the year are as follows:

5. No. Date of Meeting Name of Directors who attended the
meeting

1. 14.11.2024 Mr. Balbir Singh, Mr. Pumit Kumar
Chellaramani and Mr, Rajeev Kapoor

24, Director’s Responsibility Statement

To the best of their knowledge and in terms of the provisions of Section 13§
(¢) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors make the following statemh ;



a) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March
31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with the proper explanation relating to material departures:

b) the director had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for that
period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d} the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis:

e) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by
the Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and
were operating effactively.

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate
and operating effectively.

25. Statutory Auditor

M/s Kumar Chopra & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No,
000131N) were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the
Annual General Meeting held on 30" September, 2022 for another term of five
years till the conclusion of 44" AGM to be held in calendar year 2027,

26.Consolidated Financial Statement

The Company has one direct subsidiary namely ‘Rajputana Developers Limited’
(RDL), one indirect subsidiary namely ‘Super Investment (India) Limited through
RDL and one Associate Company namely ‘H M A Udyog Private Limited'. In
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As
-110) on consolidated financial statements and Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
As -28) on Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Finangial
Statements, the audited consolidated financial statement has been prepared
and furnished as a part of the Annual Report for the year under review.

27. Auditor’'s Report

There is no qualification in the Standalone and Consolidated Auditor's Report
as on 315 March, 2025,




28. Dividend Distribution Policy

As per regulation 43A of SEBI Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement
(LODR) Reguiation, 2015, SEBI has mandated top 1000 listed entities based on
market capitalization (caiculated as on March 31 of every financial year) to
formulate a dividend distribution policy which shall be disclosed in their annual
reports and on their websites.

The Company does not fall under the criteria above-mentioned. Hence, the
Company is not required to formulate the Dividend Distribution Policy.

29. Unclaimed Share Certificates

The status of the unclaimed share certificates as on 31st March, 2025 has been
mentioned in the report on Corporate Governance. (Refer point no. 15 of
Corporate Governance report)

30.Cost Audit

The provisions of cost audit are not applicable on the Company.

31.Secretarial Auditor

The Board appointed ‘M/s Vishal Arora & Associates’, Practicing Company
Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25 pursuant
to section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Secretarial Audit report
submitted by them in the prescribed form MR-3 (of the Company and its material
subsidiary, M/s Rajputana Developers Limited) is attached as per Annexure ‘E’
and forms part of this report. Further, due to recent amendments in regulation
24 A of SEBI LODR Regulation , 2015, every listed entity and its material
unlisted subsidiaries incorporated in India shall undertake Secretarial Audit by a
Secretarial Auditor who shall be a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary and shall
annex a Secretarial Audit Report with the annual report of the listed
entity. Further, the appointment of secretarial auditor shall be subject to the
approval of the Shareholder of the Company in its Annual General Meeting.

In view of above provision, the Board recommended the name of M/s Vishal
Arora & Associates, Company Secretaries, (Peer Review No:967/2020) to be
appointed as a Secretarial Auditor of the Company and its material subsidiary
M/s Rajputana Developers Limited’ for a term of five years starting from 1st
April, 2025 to 31st March, 2030, which is required to be approved by the
Shareholders of the Company by way of ordinary resolution.

32. Internal Control System and their Adequacy

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chart rﬁﬁ,
Accountants of India ('ICAI'. These responsibilities include the Aﬂemgn

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contwl,é;tthavt
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were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

33. Risk Management

The Company has formally adopted a Risk Management Policy to identify and
assess the Key risk areas, monitor and report compliance and effectiveness of
the policy and procedure. The Board periodically reviews the risks and suggest
steps o be taken to control and mitigate the same through a properly defined
framework.

34.Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEB! (Listing Obligation and disclosure
Requirement) Regulation, 2015, '‘Business Responsibility and Sustainability
Reporting’ is applicable for top one thousand (1000) listed entities based on
market capitalization calculated as on March 313t of every Financial Year. The
above reporting is not applicable to the Company as it is not covered under the
criteria given in the said Regulation. Therefore, no disclosure has been made
on the items covered under Business Responsibility Reporting.

35.Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the
Company as per the criteria laid down under section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013,

36.Remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

A statement of Particulars relating to remuneration as per rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 is annexed as per Annexure ‘F’

37. Statutory information

Being an Investment Company, there are no particulars which are required to
be furnished under section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to
Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption, as these are not
applicable. There were no foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year.

38.Equity Shareg Capital

The Equity share capital of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 stood at Rs.

83.98 lacs. During the year under review, the company has not issued shares--.
with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat equity.




As on 31st March, 2025, none of the Directors of the Company hold instruments
convertible into equity shares of the Company.

39.Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013;

There are no women employee on the payroll of the Company except one
women director Non - Executive Director, Ms. Anshu Maheshwari.
Accordingly, the details required to be furnished as per the Companies
(Accounts) Second Amendment Rules, 2025 effective from 14th July, 2025
is stated as under:-

i) Number of sexual harassment complaints received during the F.Y 2024-
25: NIL

i) Disposal off the case during the year :NA

i) Number of cases pending for a period exceeding ninety days: NIL

40, Statement on Maternity Benefit Compliance:

The Company will comply with the Provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
as and when it will become applicable on the Company. As on 31.03.2025, there
is no women employee on the payroll of the Company.

41.Frauds Reported by Auditors Under Section 143(12) of Companies Act,
2013

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Board of
Directors

42.Code for Prevention of Insider-trading practices

The Company has placed a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading
and a Code of Practices and Procedure for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information in accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015. The Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading lays
down guidelines advising the management and other connected persons, on
procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made by them in dealing with
the shares of the Company. The said code of Practices is also available on
company's website; www.nktil. com

43.Disclosures

a. No significant and material orders were passed by the Regulators/ Courts

operations.

-



b. There were no material changes and commitments during the year under
report,

¢. There was no change in the nature of business during the year under report.

The other relevant provisions/ sections of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company and therefore have not been reported above.

44. Appreciation

Your directors wish to thank and express their sincere appreciation to the valued
shareholders, bankers and clients for their continued support and faith reposed
in the Company.

Respectfully submitted on behalf of the Board
Place: New Delhi
Dated:17.07.2025

@V,»—‘A A

N

(Balbir Singh) (Pumit Kuprar Chellaramani)
Director Director

DIN:00027438 DIN: 05147900




Annexure A

N K Textile Industries Limited

Registered office: Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14, 3" Floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025

CIN: L17299DL1983PLC163230, Tel: +91 11 61119429
Email Id: n.ktextiles123@gmail.com, website:www.nktil.com

Form AQC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule § of Companies

{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate

companics/joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Amount, in lakhs)

| SLNo. Particulars Details
1 Name of the Subsidiary Rajputana Super Investment (India)
Developers Limited(subsidiary of RDL)
Limited (RDL)
2 The date since when subsidiary was | 21.01.2016 06.06.2016
acquired
3 Reporting period for the subsidiary | Not Applicable Not Applicable
concerned, If different from the
Holding Company's reporting period,
4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate | Not Applicable Not Applicabie
as on the lasi date of the relevant
Financial year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries,
5 Equity Share Capital 54.96 10.67
6 Reserve & Surplus 43042.25 35347.22
7 Total Assets 50433.12 40204.65
8 Other Liabilities 7335.91 4846.76
9 Total Liabilitics 50433.12 40204.65
10 Investments (excluding subsidiary) 49345 82 39956,32
11 Turnover/Total Income 320.64 19949 64
12 Profit before taxation 278,43 19948.69
13 Provision for taxation 116,17 3242,10
14 Profit after taxation 162,26 16706.59
15 Proposed Dividend -
16 % of Shareholding 81.88% 88.61% (through Rajputana
Developers Limited
Part “B”; Associates {(Amount in lakhs)
SLNo Particulars Details
1 Name of Associate MM A Udyog Private Limited
2 Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2025
3 Date on which the Associate was 28.02.2014
associated or acquited
4 Shares of Associate held by the company
on the year end .
i No. of shares 4,00,000 cquity shares /o>

4




Amount of Investiment in Associate 103.06

Extent of Holding % 40%

Description of how there is significant The Company holds more than 20% of
influence voting power in the associate

Reason why the associate is not Not Applicable

consolidated

Net worth attributable to shareholding as 74497,89
per latest audited Balance Sheet

Profit/Loss for the Year 21309.83

Profit / {Loss) Considered in Consolidation | £.566.15
(for the year)

Profit / (Loss) nol considered in 12,743.68
Consolidation

** There is no Joint Venture of the Company
$ Including share in change in profit/loss ns per previous year’s provisional and audited
financials,

Notes on Part A and B,
I, There are no subsidiaries/associates/joint ventures which are yet to commenee operations.

2. There are no subsidiaries/associates/joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Far and on behalf of the Board

g R4

Balbir Singh fimar Chellaramani
Director Director
DIN:00027438 DMN: 05147900

P utn
v

i £

Datc: 17.07.2025
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure B

N K Textile Industries Limited
Registered office: Omaxe Square, Plot No, 14, 3" Floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025
CIN: L17299DL1983PLC163230, Tel: +91 11 61119429
Email Id: n.ktextiles 123@gmail.com, website:www.nktil.com

Annual Retarn Extracts in MGT-9
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
us on the financial year ended on 31.03.2025
[Pursnant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OQTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN L17299DL1983PLC163230

2 Registration Date 09.02,1983

3 Name of the Company N.K Textile Industries Limited

4 Category/Sub-Category of the Company Limited by shares
Company (Indian Non- Government Company)

5 Address of the Registered office and Omaxe Square, Plot No.14, 3" Floor,
contact detzils Jasola District Centre, Jasola,

New Delhi-110025

Contact Details, 011-61119429

6 Whether listed Company Yes
7 Name, Address and contact details of | MAS Services Limited
Registrar and Transfer Apent, if any Address:T-34, 2" Floor, Okhla Phase-Ii
Delhi-110020

Email Id:investor@masserv.com
Tel:011-26387281,82.83

II PRINCTPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the husiness activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company
shall be stated:-

5. No Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover
main products / services Product/ service of the company
1 Interest received from Bank 66190 99,70%

I



HI PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:-

NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDIN | % of shares Apphi
S, ADDRESS G/ held cable
NO | OF THE SUBsIiDl Bectio
COMPANY ARY/ n
ASSOCIAT
E
1 Rajputana U45400D1.2008PLC172433 | Subsidiary [N.K.Textile Section
Developers Company lndustries 2(87) of
Limited limited holds |Companies
81.88 % Equity|Act, 2013
Shares of
Rajputana
Developers
Limited
2  (Super U74899DL1979PLC0O10095  Subsidiary |[Rajputana Section
Investment Company Developers 2(87) of
(India) Limited Limited holds |Companies
88.61% Equity Act, 2013
Shares of Super
Investment
(India) Limited
3 HMAUdyog [U36999DL1981PTC011548 |Associate |N.K.Textile Section 2(6)
Private Limited Company [Industries of
l.imited holds |[Companies
40% equity  jAct, 2013
shares of HMA
Udyog Private
Limited
IV, SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding as on 31.03.2025

Category of No. of shares held at the | No. of shares held at the end of %
sharcholders | beginning of the year the year change
during
the year
Demat  Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total %  of
total total
hare shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/
HUF |
b) Central Govt § Jf@fiq%i‘%
- - - AR A
é‘ "{vf\’r:'. - %m
. ) fuf KRR Sedag, 4
c) State Govi(s) L iy
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d) Bodies Corp.| 023012 ~ 1623012 | a9 | 623012 | - 623012 74.19

¢) Banks/ FI - - . . . R .
) Any other - - - - - R . -

Sub-total (A)(1) | 623013 -1 623012 [ 7419 | 623012 S Te23002 | 7409

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- - - . - . . .

Individuals
b) Other- - . .
Individuals
¢) Bodies Corp. - - . - - . - N
d) Banks/ Fl - - - - . . .
e) Any other - - - - . 3 d
Sub-total (A)(2) - : : - - - 3 -
Total 623012 - G012 | 74.19 | 623012 - | 623012 74,19

shareholding of
Promoter (A) =
(A)(1) + (A)(2)

B, Public
Shareholding

(1) Institutions

4) Mutual - - - - . N N N
Funds ‘

b) Banks/ F] - - - . . . _
¢) Central Govt . . . - - .

d) Srate Govi(s) - - . - . . - -
@) Venture - - - . - . . -
Capital
Funds

f) Insurance - . -
Companies

g) Fils - . . - . - . .
h} Foreign - - - - . ;
Venlure
Capital
IF'unds

i) Others - - . - . . -

Sub-total (B)(1) : : : ; - ; - -

(2) Non- - - - . . . .
Institutions '

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 216720 | 216720 | 25.80 | 216720 - [ 216720 [T RA A0

.cl 1
3

i) Overseas . - - . - :
!

b) Individuals - - - . - - i‘




i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1
lakh

] (K}

10

0.01

104)

100 .01

sharcholders
holding
naminal
share capital
in excess of
Rs. | lakh

ii) Individual

¢) Others

Other

relatives

Directors and

Non-
Resident
Individuals

Trusts

Sub-total (B)(2)

216720

100

216820

2551

216720

100

216820 2541

Total Public
Sharcholding
(B) = (B)(1)+
®)©)

"C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

839732

100

839832

100 | 839732

100

839832 100

(i1) Shareholding of Promoters as on 31.03.2025

i

No | Name

Sharcholder’s

Sharcholding at the
beginning of the year

Sharcholding at the end
of the year

No. of
Shares

% of
total
Shares

of the /

company

No. of
Shares

% of
Shares
Pledped

encumb
ered

to total
shares

% of
tolal
Shares
of the
company

Yool %
Shares
Pledge
d/
encum
bered
1o total

change
during
the year

of

l. KK Modi

[nvestment and

kEIvEbed

44.42

- 373012

44.?;@%8&,&\1\1”,
‘-.3:.
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Financial Services
Private Limited

2 HM A Udyog 250000 2077 . 230000 29,77 - NI,
Private Limited
Total 623012 74,19 623012 7419 . NIl
(1)) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify if there is no change);
There is no change*
Sl Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares sharcs of the | shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the 623012 74.19 623012 74.19
yeri
Date wise Increase / “ - - -
(Decrease) in
Shareholding  during  the
year and reasons
At the End of the year 623012 74.19 623012 74.19

* There is no change in the shareholding of promoters between April 1, 2024 to March
31, 2025,
(iv) Sharcholding Pattern of top ten Sharcholders (other thanm Directors,

Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) as on 31.03.2025

SL | For each of the Top 10 | Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No | shareholders beginning of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total | No. of % of total
shares of | shares shares of the
the company
company
1 | Trend Agencies Private | 57950 6.90 57950 6.90
Limited
Datewise Increase/Decrease | Nil  movement - - -
in Shareholding during the during the year
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.p.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity ete. )
At the End of the year (or on | §79%50 6.90 57950 4.90
date  of separation, if
separated during the year)
2 | Azure Products Private | 98720 11.758
Limited
Datewise Increase/Decrease | Nil  movement] -
in Shareholding during the during the year

210




year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
al equity ete.):

At the End of the year (or on
date  of  separation, if
separated during the year)

98720

Narayan Sales Private
Limited

60039

11.75

98720

1175

| 60050

7.15

Datewise Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specitying the reasons
for increase /decrease (c.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity ete.)

Nil movement -
during the year

At the End of the year (or on
date  of separation, if
separated during the year)

60050

60050

Mr. Anil Buddhiraja

4

Datewise Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.pg.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity ete.):

Nil movement
during the
year

Al the End of the year (or on
date  of  separation, if
separated during the vear)

0.00

0.00

e

Ms. Babita Gupta

4

0.00

(.00

Datewise Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (c.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity ete.):

Nil movement
during the
year

At the End of the year (or on
date  of  separation, if
separated during the year)

0.00

0.00

Mr. Vinay Sharma

4

0.00

0.00

Datewise Ingrease/Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e..
allotment/ransfer/bonus/swe
at equity ete.):

Nil movement
during the
year

At the End of the year (or on
date  of  separation, i
separated during the year)

0.00
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Mr. Rakesh Gupta

4

0.00

4 0.00

Datewise Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.p.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity ete.);

Nil movement
during the
year

At the End of the year (or on
date  of  separation, if
separated during the year)

0.00

4 0.00

Ms. Alisha Chopra

4

0.00

4 0.00

year specifying the reasons

Datewise Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the

for tncrease /deerease (e,
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity etc.):

Nil movement
during the
year

At the End of the year (or on
date of separation, if
separated during the year)

0.00

4 0.00

Mrs. Ashu Rawat

3

0.00

3 0.00

year specitying the reasons

Datewise Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the

for increase /decrease (c.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity ete.):

Nil movement
during the
year

At the End of the year (or on
date  of separation, if
separated during the year)

0.00

3 0.00

10

Mrs Manisha Kambo

3

0.00

L7~ ]

0.00

year specifying the reasons

Datewise Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the

for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity etc.):

Nil movement
during the
year

At the End of the year (or on
date  of separation, if
separated during the year)

L

0.00

3 0.00

(v) Sharcholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel as on 31.03.2025

Sl
No

For each of the Directors
and KMP

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

A

At the beginning of the
Year

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of ,M.--%.oj;fotal
b B b
shares /~O'tshafeyy
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Mr. Balbir Singh
(DIN:00027438)

Datewise  Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity ete.);

At the End of the year

Mr. Rajeev Kapoor
(DIN:(13155896) (Ceased as
a Director w.c.f 30" April,
2025 duc to death)

Datewise Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increasc /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity etc.):

At the End of the year

Mr. Sunil Agearwal (DIN:
00029286)

Datewise Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transler/bonus/swe
at cquity ete.):

At the End of the year

Mr. Pumit Kumar
Chellaramani

Date-wise Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.z.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
al equity ete.):

At the End of the year

Ms. Anshu Maheshwari

Date-wise Increase/Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity etc.):

At the End of the year

Key Managerial Personnet
(KMP)

13




1 Mr. Surindra Kapoor - - - -
(Chief Financial Officer and
also  designated as Chief
Executive Officer w.e.f 214
March, 2022) (Ceased to be
CEQ & CFO of the
Company w.e.f 11" June,
2024 due to death)

Datewise Increase/Decrease - - - -
in  Promoters $Sharcholding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease
(e.p.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity ete.):

At the End of the year - " - -

2 Mr. Gopal Sharma - L. - -
(Appeinted as CEO & CFO
of the Company w.el 13
August, 2024)

Datewise Increase/Decrease
in Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease
(e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity ete.)!

At the End of the year

3 Mr. Ankit Chaturvedi - - - -
(Company Secretary)

Datewise Increase/[)ec:rease‘ - - - -
in  Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease
{e.n.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swe
at equity ete,);

At the End of the year - - - -

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not
due for payment

Secured Loans Deposits Total
excluding deposits Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
Financial year
i} Principal Amount . - ndug ;\0\
ii) Interest due but not paid _ /’ .i';*/ \ \
K ( TN ] C‘\hl
‘;:f,»\ -";.‘
P’
G

Ay



fii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i)

Change in indebtedness during the
Financial year

*  Addition

® (Reduction)

Indebtedness at the end of the Financial
year

i) Principal Amount

if) Interest due but not paid

iif) Interest acerued but not due

Total (irrii-iii)

VI,

REMUNERATION OF

PERSONNEL

DIRECTORS

AND

KEY MANAGERIAL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

81 | Particulars of
No | Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Total
Amount

1. | Gross salary

NIL

a)Salary as  per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b)Value of perquisites w/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 196]

(¢)Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961

2. | Stock Option

3. | Sweat Equity

4. | Commission

- as % of profit

- others

Others- Provident Fund

Lh

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:

SE | Particalars of
No | Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

1. | Independent Directors

® Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

o Commission

e Others

Total (1)




Ms. Anshu -
Maheshwari

2. | Other Non-Executive
Directors

® Toe for attending board /
committee meetings

e  Commission

Conveyance 5000

of Rs. 3000

o Oihers

Total (2) 5000 5000

Total (B)= (1+2) 5000 5000

Total Managerial - -
Remuneration

Ceiling as per the Act

C. Remuneration to Key Personnel  other  than

MD/Manager/WTD

Managerial

51

Particulars
of
Remunerat
ion of Key
Managerin
1 Personnel

Chicf Financial Officer
(CFO) and Chief
Executive Officer
(CEQ)(Ceased as CEO
& CFO of the
Company w.e.f 11t

Company
Secretary
(CS)

Total

June, 2024

Mr. Ankit
Chaturvedi

1. | Gross salary

30,000 0 30,000

(2)Salary  as
per

provisions
contained
in  section
17(1) of the
[ncome-tax
Act, 196]
(b)Value  of 0 0
perquisites
u/s  17(2)
[ncome-tax
Act, 1961
(c)Profits  in | - : -
lieu of

salary
under
seclion
17(3)
Income-tax
Act, 1961




2. | Stock Option | - -
3. | Sweat Equity | « -
4, | Commission | - w
- as % of - -
profit
- others - -
5. | Others - .
TOTAL 30000 0 300600
V. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Scction of | Brief Brief Authority Appeal made, if
the Deseription | Description | [RD /NCLT/ | any
Companices COURT] (give Details)
Act
A.COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -
Penalty - - " - -
Punishment - - " - -
C.OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
wwi‘;ﬂr‘.-;nalty - - - " -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

Respectfully snbmitted on behalf of the Board
Place: New Delhi For N K Textile Industries Limited

Dated: 17.07.2025

(Balbir Singh) (Pumit)ﬁir Chellaramani)

Director Director
DIN:OD027438 DIN: 05147900
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VISHAL ARORA L ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Annexure = I
Certificate of Corporate Governance
To,
The Members
M/s N K Textile Industries Limited
Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14,
3rd Floor Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Detlhi-110025

We have examined the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance by
M/s N K Textile Industries Limited (CIN: L.17299DL1983PLC163230) (‘the Company’)
for the year ended on March 31, 2025 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 20 and 22 to 27 and
Clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2), and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of Sccurities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremnents) Regulations,
2015 (*SERI Listing Regulations’).

The eompliance with conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Managetnent. Our examination was limited to procedures (and implementation thereof),
ndopted by the Company. We share neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assuranee on the future viahility of the
Company, nor on the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted
the aftairs of the Company.

Place: Noida Proprictor = -

Date: 16" July, 2025 M. No. 5958; C P No.: 5992
UDIN: F005958G000794900
PR No. 967/2020

(B-29, 4 Floor, Sector-1, Noida, Uttar Pradesh-201301
Tel’: +91 11 4987 2987
e-mail* info@legumamicuss.com ; Website : www.lequmamicuss.com
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VISHAL ARORA I ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members

M/s N K Textile Industries Limited
Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14,

34 Floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of N K Textile Industries Limited (CIN L17299DL1983PLC163230) having s registered
office at Omaxe Square, Plot No, 14, 3™ floor, Jasola District Centre, Jasola, New Delhi-110025
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), This assessment is based on documents give to us by the
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V Para-C Sub Clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Repulations, 2015,

In our epinion and to the best of our information and aceording to the verification [including Directors
Identification Number (IDIN) status at the portal www.meca.gov.in] as considered necessary, and
explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2025, have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), or any such other
Statutory Authority:

5 Name of Director DIN Date of Appeintment
No in the Company®*
1 Mr. Balbir Singh 00027438 February 10, 2007
2 | Mr. Bunil Aggarwal 00029286 September 03, 2004
3 Mr, Shailender Singh Rana 07679244 May 27, 2025
4 | Mr. Pumit Kumar Chellaramani 05147900 November 11, 2024
5 | Ms, Anshu Maheshwari 10830308 November 11, 2024

*The date of nppointment is as per the MCA Portal

Ensuring eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these matters, based
on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance on the future viability of the Company, nor
on the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Place: Noida Propriettn
Date: 16™ July, 2025 M. No. 5958; C P No.: 5992
UDIN; F005958G000794889

PR Neo. 967/2020

B-29 4% Floor, Sector-1, Novda, Uttar Pradesh-201301
Tel: +91 11 4987 2987
e-mail’ fnfo@legumamicuss.com ; Website : wuw. legumamicuss.com
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VISHAL ARORA T ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

M/s N K Textile Industries Limited
Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14,

3" Floor Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s N K Textile Industries Limited
(herzinafter called “the Company™). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a rensonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory complisnces and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company, and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder, and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subjcct to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the hooks, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(it) The Securities Coniracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made there under.
(1ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder

to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial borrowing. e

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines festaihed té \r the Securities and Exchange

B-29, 44 Floor, Sector-1, Nk b
Tel;: +91 11 4955987;
e-mail: info@lequmamicuss.com ; Website : www.lequmamicuss.com
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Vishal Arora & Associates
Company Secretaries . ______Continuation Sheet.........

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act™) and the
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder;

(b) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA™), rules made thereunder
and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI™);

(¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 201 1;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regrulations, 2018,

(¢) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Investor Protection and Education Fund)
Regulations, 2009,

(vi)  We further report that there were no events / actions in pursuance of:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requircments) Regulations, 2018;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option de:m and
Employees Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999,

{¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015,

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

(f} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of [ndia (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
and Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018;

ndm (Delisting of Equity Shares)

(i) The Securities and Exchange '
Regulations, 2009; Q,

)
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Vishal Arora & Associates

We have also exnmined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
{b) Codes and Policies adopted by the Company.

We further report that during the period under review the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rujes, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above
subject to filing of certain ¢-forms.

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

We further report that, adequate notice is given to all directors lo schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance
(except in few instances where the Board/Committee meeting(s) were called at a shorter
notice, with the consent of the Directors, including the Independent Directors), and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Decisions carried through
by the Board do not have any dissenting views and hence no relevant recordings were made
in the minute’s book maintained for the purpose.

We further report that there arc adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations ot the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines framed thereunder.,

We further report that during the aundit period there were following cvents/actions in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, ete., having a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs:

For Vishal Arora & Associates

Place: Noida : Proprietor

Date: 16 July, 2025 M. No. 5958; C P No.: 5992
UDIN: F005958G000794834
PR No. 967/2020

This Report is to be read with Annexure A, which forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure A
To,
The Members,
M/s N K Textile Industries Limited
Omaxe Square, Plot No, 14,
3" Floor Jasola District Centre,
New Delhi-110025

Qur repott of even date is to be read along with this letter.

I. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit,

2. We have followed the audit practices and processcs as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The verification was done on the random test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis tor our opinion,

3. We have not verified the correctness and approptiateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
cornpliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events cte.

5. The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the Management, Our examination was
limited to the veritication of procedurcs on random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance ag to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Vishal Arora & Associates

Place: Noida Proprietor

Date: 16" July, 2025 M. No. 5958; C P No,: 5992
UDIN: FO05958G000794834
PR No. 967/2020
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VISHAL ARORA L ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARJAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule ¢ of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

M/s Rajputana Developers Limited
Omaxe Square, Plot No, 14,

3™ Floor Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Rajputana Developers Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon,

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company, and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Sceretarial
Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder, and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to
the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under:
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under.

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed therc under to
the extent of Regulation 55A;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Extemnal
Commercial borrowing,

(v) The following Regutations and Guideline uder the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’);

0
(A
B,
S
@

e
B-29, 4% Floor, Sector-1, NohioOBRtlr Pradesh-201301
Tel: +91 11 4987 2947;
e-mail’ info@legumamicuss.com ; Website : www.legumamicuss, com
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Vishal Arora & Associates

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015,

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(¢) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018,

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993;

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Investor Protection and Education
Fund) Regulations, 2009,

(vi) We further report that thcre were no events / actions in pursuance of?

(n) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

{b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999,

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and

(fy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018;

We have also examined complianec with the applicable clauses of the following:




Vishal Arora & Associates
Company Secretaries =~

We further report that during the period under review the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above
subject to filing of certain e-forms,

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

We further report that, adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance
(except in few instances where the Board/Committee meeting(s) were called at a shorter
notice, with the consent of the Directors, including the Independent Directors), and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Decisions carried through
by the Board do not have any dissenting views and hence no relevant recordings were made
in the minute’s book maintained for the purpose.

We further report that there are adequaele systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines framed thereunder.

We further report that during the audit period there were following events/actions in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, ete., having a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs:

For Vishal Arora & Assoclates

Vishhal Arorah
Place: Noida Proprictor. ™~
Date: 21* May, 2025 M. No. 5958; C P No.: 5992

UDIN: F005958G000402497
PR No. 967/2020

This Report is 1o be read with Annexure A, which forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure A
To,
The Members,
M/s Rajputana Developers Limited
Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14,
3™ Floor Jasola District Cenire,
New Delhi-110025

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit,

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate {o ohtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records,
The verification was done on the random test basis to ensure that correct facts arc
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3, We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company,

4, Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events ete.

5. The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards s the responsibility of the Management, Qur examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Vishhal Arors
Place: Noida Proprictor
Date: 21* May, 2025 M. No. 5958; C P No.: 5992

UDIN: F005958G000402497
PR No. 967/2020
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N K Textile Industries Limited

Registered office: Omaxe Square, Plot No, 14, 3" Floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025
CIN: L17299DL1983PLC163230, Tel: +91 11 61119429
Email Id: n.ktextiles123@email.com, website:www.nktil.com

Annexure ‘F
STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS AS PER RULE 6 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014,
{i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the

employees of the company for the financial year

Rs. 5000 was paid as conveyance to Ms. Anshu Maheshwari during the F.Y 2024-25,
Other than the conveyance stated above no remuneration was paid to any directar or
employeas of the Company.

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager in the financial
ear
Name of Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration %  increase In
paid during | remuneration in
Financial Year | the Financial Year
2024-25 2024-25
Mr. Surindra Kapoor, CEQ & CFO (ceased | 30000 NIL

as CFOQ & CEQ of the Company due to death
on 110 June, 2024)

Mr. Gopal Sharma , CEQ & CFQ of the | - NIL
Company appeinted w.e.f 13th August, 2024
Mr. Ankit Chaturvedi | Company Secratary -
Total 30000

NIl

(ifil) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the
financial year
During the year under review, there Is no increase in the remunaration paid

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
The number of permanent employee on the roll of the Company is two (02)

(v) The explanation on the relationship between company performance and an
average increase in remuneration
During the year under review, there is no increase in the remuneration paid. Hence,
this clause is not applicable.
(vi) Comparison of the remuneration of the KMP (Key Managerial Personnal) against
the psrformance of the company
During the year under review, there was no in¢rease in the remuneration of KMP as it
was same as in the previous year.

(vii)  Variations in the company’s market capitalisation and price-earnings ratio as on
the closing date of the current financial year and previcue financial year
Thera is no variation in the company's market capitalisation as shares of the Company
are non tradable and belongs to BE series

{viii) Average percentile increase already made In the salaries of employees other
than the managerial personnel in the last financial year

During the year under review, thers is no increase in the remuneration paid. Hence,

this clause is not applicable. »

ausiriges

(ix) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration avaﬂ%ﬂ*ﬁ? the’ &0

directors. : \;\\:\3

Not applicable as anly conveyance of Rs. 5000 was paid to Ms. Anshu Maheshwari, i

Non Executive Director of the Company. \ /
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(x)

(xi)

{xii)

The remuneration ratio of the highest paid director to that of the employees who
are not directors but receive remuneration above the highest paid director during

the year

Not applicable as only conveyance of Rs. 5000 was paid to Ms. Anshu Maheshwal,
Non — Executive Director of the Campany.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the
company

Yes

A statement consisting the name of every employee of the company indicating

the following:
5.No | Particulars Employee Employee Employee
1 Name of Employee | Mr. Surindra | Mr. Gopal | Mr. Ankit
Kapoor (died | Sharma Chaturvedi
on {appointed w.e.f
11.06.2024} 13t August,
2024)
2 Designation of the | Chief Chief Executive | Company
employee Executive Office & Chief | Secretary
Office & Chief | Financiaf
Financial Officer
Officar
3 Remuneration Rs. 15000 per | Reimbursement | Raimburserment
Month of actual | of actual
exXpenses, if | expenses if any.
any.
4 Nature of | Permanent Permanent Permanent
employment,
whether
contractual or
otherwise
] Experience and | He has rich | He hag vrich | He has three
qualifications  of | experience of | experiance of | years experience
the employee more than 30 | more than 25 | in the secretarial
years years field and is a
qualified
Company
Secretary
6 Date of | He was | Appointed as | He was
commencement of | appeinted as | CEQ & CFO of | appointed as CS
employment CFO wef2 | the Company ;| w.e.f 1% October,
February, w.a f 13t | 2021
2015 and | August, 2024
appointed as
CEQw.ef21%
March, 2022,
Ceased as
CEOQO & CFO
of the
Company
w.ef 11th
June, 2024
7 Age of the | Died on 11t | As on | As on
employee June, 2024 31.03.2025 58 | 31.03.2025
years 32 Years
8 The ltast | - - -
employment held
by the employee
hefore Joining the
company

319




9 The equity shares | NIL NIL NIL
percentage held by
the employee in the
company

10 Whether such | No No No
employes s a
relative of manager
or director of the

company and
name of such
manager or
director

Respectfully submitted on behalf of the Board
For N K Textite Industries Limited

@.,A ‘?Lf’"‘/

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 17.07.2025

(Balbir Singh) {Pumit Kdrhiar Chellaramani)
Director Director
DIN:00027438 DIN: 05147500

(¥33)



NKTEXTILE INDUSTRIES LIMITED

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, (hercinafter referred to as
“SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015”) the Directors present the Company’s Report on
Corporate Governance

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE, GOVERNANCE

A good Corporate Governance system is key to meaningful and holistic growth of an
organization and the foundation through which is nurtured its sustainable progress into the
future, Corporate Governarice  aims at creating and enhancing long-term sustainable value for
the stakeholders through ethically driven business process. It is imperative that our Company
affairs are managed in 4 fair and transparent manner. We, therefore, ensure that we evolve and
follow the Corporate Governance guidelines and best practices,

The Corporate Governance initjatives of the Company endeavor to achieve basic objective of
wealth creation for the benefit of all its stakeholders i.e. shareholders, employees, business
associates and the society at large. The Board of the Company is primarily responsible for
protecting and enhancing shareholder’s value besides fulfilling the Company’s obligations
towards other stakeholders. The role of the Board of Directors is to provide. strategic
supcrintendence and control over the Company’s management.

The day-to-day management of the Company is vested in the managerial personnel and
sufficient authority is delegated at different levels. It is imperative that our Company affairs
are managed in a Tair and transparent manner.

The Company has complied with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read
with Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of Sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015, as applicable, regarding corporate governance.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
i) Composition of the Board

The Board consists of an optimal combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors,
including Independent Non-executive Directors, representing a judicious mix of business
acumen, professionalism, knowledge and experience.

The Directors bring in expertise in the fields of stralegy, management, finance and law,
among others. They provide leadership, strategic guidance, objective and independent view
to the Companys management while discharging their fiduciary rusponmb111t19,s«thymby

ensuring that the management adheres to highest standards of ethics, u.mspau‘éﬁ yeff(d\
compliance, . :




As on 31% March, 2025, the Board comprised of two independent directors & three non-

independent, non-executive directors,

The Chairman of the Board is a non-executive, non -independent director and the
minimum requirement of one-third of the Board consisting of independent directors is
duly complied with.

The independent directors of the Company have already submitted their declarations
affirming their status as independent directors as on March 31, 2025,

ii) Details of the Board of Directors, their attendance at the Board Meetings/ last
Annual General Meeting and their directorships/ memberships/chairmanships
in Board/ Board Committees, respectively of other companices are as under:

5 No. | Name of { Category No. of Attendance | Directorship/ | Membership/
Birector Board at last AGM | Chairmanship | Chairmanship
Mectings of Board of | of otlier Board
nttended other Committees*™
Companies* as|as al March 3,
at March 31, 2025
2025
I M. Sunil | Non-Ixecutive 7 No 3 Nil
Aggarwal & Non-
DIN: Independent
00029286
2 Mr. Balbir Nun-Exeeutive 7 Yes 5 Nil
Singh & Non
[IN Q027434 Independent
3 M, Sanjoy Mon-Executive | 3 No NA NA
Kumar Gupla & MNaon
DIN:QOO27728 | Independent
(ceased as o
Director of the
Company w.e.l
141 November,
2024)
4 Mrs, Beenu MNos-Cxecutive 3 Yy NA NA
Aparwil & Independent
DIN:00056062
(Coased as a
director of the
Compuany w.e.l
7% November,
2024)
5 Mr. Pumit Non-Executive | 4 NA 5 Nil
Kumar & Independent
Chellaramani
DIN:O5 147900
(Appoinled
w.c.f 7t
November,
20243
& Ms. Anshu Non-Exeeutive | 4 NA |
Maleshwari & Non-
RIN:TOR30I0R Independent

l-r:).




(Appuointed
W.l.‘!.!'l 7[1\
MNovember,
2024)

Late Mr, Rajeey
kapoor

DIN:(3 155896
(Ceased as an
Independent
Director of the
Company w.e.f
30t April, 2025
due to death)

MNon-Executive
& Independent

MNo

Nil

Mr, Shailender
Hingh Rana

Non-Execulive
& Independent

NA

NA -

i

Mil

[2IN: 07679244
(Appointed
w27 May,
2025 in place of
Mr, Rajeey
Kapoor)

' Exctudes directorships in private timited companies, foreign companics, scetion ¥ companies, allernnte dirsetorships and
memberships of managing committees of various chambers/bodics,

" Reprosents membershipsichairmanships of only Audit and Stakeholder Relationship Committees (excluding privige
companies and other non-gorporate entities),

iif) Name of the listed entities in which the Directors are holding directorship
including category of directorship:
The Directors of the Company are not holding directorship in any other listed
companies apart from this company.

(iv) Board Meetings held during the year

7 (Seven) Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2024-25. They were
held on 30™ April, 2024, 30" May, 2024, 13" August, 2024, 7" November, 2024,
14™ November, 2024, 30" December, 2024 and 4" February, 2025. The necessary
quorum was present at all the meetings,

All information mentioned in Part A of Schedule 11 to Regulation 17(7) of SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015, was made available to the Board in addition to the
regular business items.

(v) Details of pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive
directors: Nil

(vi)Brief resume, experience and other directorships/board committee

memberships of the Directors being appointed/re-appointed: Nil

Mr. Sunil Aggarwal (DIN: 00029286), being Non- Independent Director shall be
retiring by rotation and being eligible offered himself for re-appointment in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) in accordance with the provisions. of
section 152 (6) of companies Aet, 2013.
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(vii} Legal Compliances

The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of applicable laws prepared by
the Company as well as steps taken by it to rectify the instances of non-compliance,

viii) Familiarization Program for Independent Directors
2 I

The Company encourages and supports its Directors to update themselves with the
rapidly changing regulatory environment.

In case of newly appointed Directors, the designated Board of Directors of the
Company have one to one discussion with them in order to familiarize the new
inductees with the Company’s business operations. Upon appointment, Independent
Directors also receive a formal communication describing their roles, functions,
duties and responsibilities as a Director and the same is uploaded on the Company’s

web-site at-; Policies (nktil.com)

From time to time the senior management personnel make presentations at the
Board/Commitiee meetings about the Company’s business and performance
updates, strategy, operations, products, regulatory changes, opportunities, threats,
ete,

During the year under report, the Independent Directors of the Company were also
familiarized in details about the industry in which Company is operating and the
business & revenue models and various segments in which the Company has been
operating, Further, they were also made conversant about their roles, duties and
responsibilities.

(ix) Code of Conduct

The Company has Jaid down a Code of Conduct applicable to the directors and
senior management team of the Company. The said Code has been communicated
to the directors and senior management team personnel and is also posted on the
website of the Company.

All the directors and senior management team personnel who are associated with
the Company as on the date of this report, have affirmed compliance with the Code
of Conduct for the finaneial year ended 31% March, 2025.

(x) Key qualifications, expertise and attributes

The Company’s Board comprises qualified members who bring in the requisite
skills, competence and expertise that allow them to make effective contributions to
the Board and its committees, The Board members are committed to ensuring that
the Company’s Board is compliant with the highest standards of corporate
governance.

The following are the skills/expertise/competencies that are required in the context
ol the company’s business (es) and sector(s) and the directors who po
skills/expertise/competencies:

it



5. No | Name of the Director Skills/Expertise/Competencies

1. Mr. Sunil Aggarwal Expertise in the field of Finance, Taxation,
legal and Company law matters.

2, Mr. Balbir Singh Expertise in the field of Finance, Taxation
and Company law matters,

3. Mr.  Pumil  Kumar | Expertise in the field of Company law
Chellaramani matters.

4. Late Mr. Rajeev Kapoor | Expertise in the field of Finance and Taxation

5. Ms. Anshu Maheshwarl | Expertise in the {ield of Finance,

(xi) The Board of Directors of the Company has confirmed that in their opinion the
Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management.

(xii) Mrs. Beenu Agarwal , Independent Director of the Company resigned from the
Company w.e.f 7% November, 2025 due to her other professional/personal
commitments during the year under report. Further, Mr. Rajeev Kapoor,
Independent Director of the Company expired on 30" April, 2025 and in order o
fill the vacancy, Mr. Shailender Singh Rana was appointed as additional director
in the independent category w.e.f 27" May, 2025,

(xiii) General Meeting held during the year:

During the Year under report 41 Annual General Meeting of the Company was
held on 30" September, 2024 and an Extra- Ordinary General Meeting was held on
30™ January, 2025,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

i) Composition and Terms of Reference

The Audit Committee of the Company has been constituted in line with the
provisions of Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013,

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover all the areas specified in
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as those specified in Part C of
Schedule 11 to SEBI Listing Repulations, 2015, as amended from time to time and
inter-alia include overseeing financial reporting process, reviewing the financial
statermnents before submission to the Board for approval, reviewing internal control
systems and procedures, approval or any subsequent modification of transactions
of the Company with related parties, etc, The Audit Committec also reviews from

time to time the information relating to management discussion and “DWWW

ancial condition and result of operations, letters of internal control w/p&k LA TN
s yh
[ i v\‘l'i,-“'

o ey DNV LS
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if any, issued by the statutory auditors and the reporis issued by the internal auditors
of the Company.

All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and the Present
Chairman, Mr, Shailender Singh Rana, possesses the required accounting, costing
and financial management expertise. Mr. Ankit Chaturvedi, Company Secretary,
acts as the Secretary 1o the Committee.

Mrs. Beenu Agarwal, Chairman at the time of AGM was present at the Annual
Gieneral Meeting held on 30" September, 2024 to answer the shareholders’ queries.

ii) Details of meetings and attendance of ¢ach member of the Committee
Audit Committec met 4 (Four) times during the financial year 2024-25 i.e. on
30" May, 2024, 13" August, 2024, 14" November, 2024 and 4" February, 2025.
5. No. Name Category of directors No. of Meetings
» attended
1 | Mrs. Beenu Agarwal Non-Executive & Independent (til 2
13" August, 2024
2 |Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta | Non-Executive & Independent (til 2
13" August, 2024)
3 |Mr. Sunil Aggarwal Non-Executive & Non-Independent 4
4 | Late Mr. Rajeev Kapoor | Non-Executive &  Independen 2
(Appointed w.ef 14" November
2024 titl 30" April, 2025)
5 | Mr. Pumit Kumar Non-Executive &  Independen 9
Chellaramani (Appointed w.ef 14" November
2024)

4. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The Company has one material Subsidiary namely M/s Rajputana Developers Limited

i)

In accordance with the requirements of Listing Regulations ,the Company has
formulated a policy on material subsidiaries and updated the same on the
website of the Company with web link:

Financial Statement of Subsidiaries (nktil.com)

Since the Company has material unlisted subsidiary, the requiremg
appointment of an independent director on the Board of such g
applicable, The Company has appointed Mr. Pumit Kumar
Independent Direetor of M/s N K Textile Industries Limitefis

S SN
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referred as NKTIL) on the Board of M/s Rajputana Developers Limited
(hereinafter referred as RDL) , (Material Subsidiary of NKTIL)

iii)  The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the financial statements in
respect of the investments made by its unlisted subsidiaries at its meeting held
on 27" May, 2025,

iv) Copies of the minutes of the board meetings of the unlisted subsidiary held
during the year 2024-25 were placed at the board meeting of the Company held
on 27" May, 2023,

V) The requirement relating to significant transactions and arrangements entered
into between the Company and its unlisted subsidiaries are placed before the
Board from time to time.

vi) Since, RDL is material Subsidiary, Secretarial Audit of the Company was
carried out by M/s Vishal Arora & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries,
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 and their report is annexed to the
Directors’ report.

5. DISCLOSURES
(A)  Basis of related party transactions

i} Transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Transactions with the related parties disclosed in note 17 to the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025 are in the ordinary course of
business. The said transactions have no potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large. All details of such transactions are provided to the Audit
Committee and Board, if required. It is also ensured that the interested directors
neither participate in the discussions nor vote on such matters,

ii) Transactions with related parties not in the normal course of business:
There are no transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties
during the financial year ended 31 March, 2025, whose terms and conditions are
nol in the ordinary course of business.

ifi) Transactions with related parties not on arm’s length basis:
There are no transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties
during the financial year ended 31" March, 2025, whose terms and conditions are
not on an arm’s length basis.

iv) Policy on dealing with related party transactions:

The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with related party transactions
and the same is available on the website of the Company at web link: J’,\:\G@m@

RPT.pdf (nktil.com)
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B)

()

(D)

(E)

(F)

()

Disclosure of accounting treatment

The financial results for the year have been prepared in accordance with the recognition
and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
prescribed undet Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Risk management Policy

The Company has formally adopted a Risk Management Policy to identify and assess
the Key risk areas, monitor and report compliance and effectiveness of the policy and
procedure, The Board periodically reviews the risks and suggest steps to be taken to
control and mitigate the same through a properly defined framework, The said policy
is available on the website of the Company at web link:

Risk-Management-Policy.pdf (nktil.com)

Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has formulated and communicated the Whistle Blower Policy to all its
directors and employees and the same is posted on the Company’s Website
Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf (nktil.com)

It provides opportunity to the directors and employees to report in good faith to the
management aboul the unethical and improper practices, fraud or violation of
Company’s Code of Conduct. The vigil mechanism under the Policy provides for
adequate safeguard against victimization of employces and directors who use such
mechanism and make provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee in exceptional cases. The Company affirms that none of the personnel of
the Company has been denied aceess to the Audit Commiltee.

Proceeds from public issues, right issues, preferential issues, ete,

The Company did not raise any funds through public, rights, preferential issues,
qualified institutional placement, ete, during the year under report.

Strictures and penaltics

No strictures or penalties have been imposed on the Company by the stock exchanges
or by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or by any statutory authority
on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

M/s Vishal Arora & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries and the Secretarial
Auditor of the Company, have issued a certificate as required under the SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015, confirming that none of the directors on the Board of the Company
has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of
companies by the SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory aulhomy
The certificate is attached with this report.
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(H)

(D

(D

(K)

(L)

iii)

There is no instance during the financial year 2024-25 where the Board has not accepted
any recommendation of any commitiee of the Board which is mandatorily required to
be accepted.

Details of Total fees paid to statutory auditors
The details of total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a

consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network
entity of which the statutory auditor is a part, are as follows:

Type of service Amount in Rs.
Audit and Related Service Fees (Audit &
Review of Financial Statements and | 88,500
Certification)
Total | 88,500

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work-place
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

During the year under report, no complaint was filed with the Company and no
complaint is pending at the end of the financial year.

Adoption of discretionary requirements

The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements of Corporate
Governance as specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and 46(2) of SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015, The Company has not adopted any discretionary requirements as prescribed in
Part I of Schedule I1 to SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report

The Company has undergone an audit for the financial year 2024-25 for all applicable
compliances as per SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and Circulars/Guidelines issued
thereunder.

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report has been submitted to the stock exchanges
within the time limit as prescribed by SEBL.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS
Remuneration policy: The Company has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration

Policy and the same is posted on the website of the Company at
Remuneration-Policy.pdf (nktil.com)

During the Financial Year 2024-25, No remuneration was paid to the Directors
except conveyance of Rs. 5000 was paid to Ms. Anshu Maheshwari, Non-Executive
Dirccetor of the Company,

Details of service contract, notice period, severance fees, ete, of directors; NIL
o
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Details of shares/convertible instruments held in the Company by the non-
executive directors. NIL

S, No. Name of the non-executive | No. of shares held as on March 31,
director 2025
1. None NIL

(iv) Performance evaluation

The performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual Directors was
carried out on the basis of duly filled-in self-evaluation questionnaire which was
prepared under the guidance of Chairman of the Board and then circulated amongst the
Directors.

Independent Directors in their separate meeting held on 28" March, 2025 evaluated the
replies/feedbacks received in response to the questionnaire circulated and expressed
their satistaction with the evaluation process.

MANAGEMENT

As per Regulation 26(5) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, all members of the senior
management team are required to disclose their interest in all the material financial and
eommercial transactions, which may have a potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large.

The senior management team comprises of CEO, CFO and Company Sectetary of the
Company and there are no matetial financial and commercial transactions that have
taken place during the financial year ended 31% March, 2025 in which they had personal
interest. These transactions include dealing in/holding of shares of the Company by
them/their relatives, transactions entered into by them/their relatives with the Company,
transactions entered into by the Company with the companies in which they/their
relatives are Directors or Members and transactions entered into by them/their relatives
with the subsidiary companies of the Company and these were placed at the Board
Meeting held on 27" May, 2025.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Initially the Committee comprised of Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta as its Chairman, Ms,
Beenu Agarwal and Mr. Sunil Aggarwal as its members. The Committee reconstituted
on 7% November, 2024 due to resignation of Mrs. Beenu Agarwal and Mr. Sanjay
Kumar Gupta and the new commiitee comprised of Ms. Anshu Maheshwari as its
Chairman and Mr, Pumit Kumar Chellaramani and Mr. Rajeev Kapoor as its members.
But due to sudden demise of Mr. Rajeev Kapoor on 30% April, 2025, the Committee
appointed Mr. Shailender Singh Rana as member in place of Mr. Rajeev Kapoor.

The terms of reference of the Committee are as under:
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(i)  To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management and recommend to the Board of Directors their
appointment and removal.

(i) To carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

(iti) To formulate the criterin for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director.

(iv) To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the
directors, key management personnel and the employees in senior management,

(v) Torecommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior
management.

(vi) Any other matter as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.

The Committee met four times during the financial year 2024-25 i.e, on 13" August,
2024, 7" November, 2024, 14" November, 2024 and 30" December, 2024.The
attendance record of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as under:-

) .o No, of meetings
5. No. Name Category of directors attended

1. Mr. Sanjay Kumar | Non-Executive & Independent 1
CGiupta

2. Mrs. Beenu | Non-Executive & Independent 0
Aparwal

3. Mr. Sunil Aggarwal | Non-Executive &  Non- 1

Independent

3. Mr. Rajeey Kapoor | Non-Fxecutive & Independent 3

4, Mr. Pumit Kumar | Non-Executive & Independent 3
Chellaramant

5. Ms. Anshu | Non-Executive &Non 3
Maheshwari Independent

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent and Non-Executive Directors

As per Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, the
performance of Independent and Non-Executive Directors is evaluated using
parameters such as their level of engagement and contribution, independence of
judgement, safeguarding the interests of the Company and its minority shareholders,
and the time devoted to the Company.

Performance evaluation for the financial year 2024-25:

The Board was satisfied with the overall performance, professional expertise and
knowledge of each of'its Directors. All Directors effectively contributed to the decision-
making process by the Board. All Committees were duly constituted and functioned
effectively, The Board also expressed its satisfaction with the documents it received
explaining Company processes and operations. The Board expressed its satisfaction
with the decision-making and decision-implementing procedures followed by it.
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10.

11.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Initially the Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of Mrs, Beenu Aggarwal,
as its Chairman and Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta and Mr. Balbir Singh as its members. On
14.11.2024, the Commmitte got reconstituted comprising of Mr. Balbir Singh as its
Chairman, Mr. Pumit Kumar Chellaramani and Mr., Rajeev Kapoor as its members. But
due to sudden demise of Mr. Rajeev Kapoor on 30" April, 2025, the Committee
appointed Mr. Shailender Singh Rana as member in place of Mr. Rajeev Kapoor,

This Commitiee, besides sanctioning shate transfers/transmissions and other related
matters, looks into various aspects of interest of shareholders® and other investors’
complaints. Further, the role of the commitiee has been specified in Part D of the
Schedule 1 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

Mr. Ankit Chaturvedi, Company Secretary, is designated as Compliance Qfficer.

During the year, the Committee met once i.¢. on 14" November, 2024 and the meeting
was atlended by Mr. Balbir Singh, Mr. Pumit Kumar Chellaramani and Mr, Rajeev
Kapoor.

The details of investor complaints received during the financial year 2024-25 are:

Opening Balance | Received during the | Resolved during the | Closing balance
year year

0 0 0 0

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE:
NOT  APPLICABLE

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’” MEETING

All the Independent Directors met on 28" March 2025, to evaluate the:

(i) Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

(i) Performance of the Chairman of the Board, taking into account the views of the
Executive and Non-Executive Directors:

(iii) Quality, content, and timeliness of flow of information between the Management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to act effectively and reasonably
perform its duties.

Declaration from Independent Direetors

The Company has received declarations from all Independent Directors of the Company
confirming they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed by Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and
Regulation 16 & 25 of the Listing Regulations,




The Board is of the opinion that its Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified
in these regulations and are independent of the Management,

centre, Jasola New
Delhi-110025

12, GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
The Annual General Meeting (AGM) is the main platform for interaction between the
Management and shareholders. Annual General Meetings are held in Delhi where
registered office of the Company is located.
The Company ensures that the Notice for the AGM, along with the Annual Report of
the Company, i3 sent to shareholders in advance,
Details of the last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) are as follows:
Financial | Date of the Time Locution Particulars of special
year AGM resolutions passed
2021-22 | 30 3.00 | Omaxe Square, Plot | Re-appointment  of  My/s,
September, | PM No.14, 5% Floor, | Kumar Chopra & Associates,
2022 Jasola District | Chartered Accountants having
centre, Jasola New | Firm Registration No. 000131N,
Delhi-110025 as issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India
as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for another term of
five years till the conclusion of
44th AGM to be held in the
calendar year 2027 with respect
to the $ financial years
beginning from April 1, 2022
and ending March 31, 2027
2022-23 | 25th 3.00 Hotel The Sentinel, | NIL
September, | PM 47, Pocket 1, Sarita
2023 Vihar, Jasola, New
Delhi-110023
2023-24 1 30th 3.00 Omaxe Square, Plot | A) Reappoiniment of  Mrs,
September, | PM No.14, 3% Floor, Beenu  Agarwal  as  un
2024 Jasola District Independent Director of the

Company for another term
ol five consecutive years .
upto the conclusion of the
46th AGM of the Company
to be held in the calendar
year 2029,
B} Appointment of Mr. Rajeev
Kapoor (DIN: 03155896) as
an Independent Director for
a term of five copsegutive
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the 46th AGM of the
Company to be held in the
calendar year 2029 in place
of Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta.

Continuation of
appoiniment of Mr. Sanjay
Kumar Gupta
(DIN:00027728) as a Non-
Executive director of the
Company on completion of
his tenure as an Independent
Direclor,

There was one Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held during the F.Y ended on
31.03.2025.The details of the exira-ordinary general meeting is as under:-

Jasola District
centre, Jasola New
Delhi-110025

Financial | Date of the Time Location Particulars of special
year EGM resolutions passed
2024-25 | 30" January, | 3.00 Omaxe Square, Plot A) To appoint Mr. Pumit
2025 PM No.14, 3 Floor, Kumar  Chellaramani

(DIN: 05147900) as an
Independent Director of
the Company for a term
of five years i.e, till 6
November, 2029.

B) To appoint Ms. Anshu
Maheshwari (DIN:
10830308) as a Non
Executive Director of
the Company

Postal Ballot

There is no special resolution proposed to be passed through postal ballot at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting scheduled on 20" August, 2025 (Tentative date)

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The quarterly, hall' yearly and annual results were published by the Company in
Financial Express (English) and Jansatta (Hindi), The quarterly and yearly results are
also available on the Company’s website: www.nktil.com.The half-yearly results are
not sent to household of the sharcholders.

The Management Discussion and Analysis forms past of the Directors’ Report.

14.
i) Annual General Meeting

Date and Time

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

20" August, 2025 at 3,00 P.M.*
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Venue : at the Registered office at Omaxe Square,
Plot No. 14, 3" Floor, Jasola District Centre,
Jasola, New Delhi 110025

ii) Financial Calendar for 2024-25

First Quarter Results : Latest by 149 August, 2025
Second Quarter Results : Latest by 14" November, 2025
Third Quarter Results : Latest by 14" February, 2026
Annual Results : Latest by 30" May, 2026
iii) Date of Book Closure ¢ 14" August, 2025 to 20" August, 2025 (both days
inclusive)*

iv) Dividend Payment Date ¢ Not Applicable

v) Listing on the Stock Exchanges:

The Company’s shares are listed on Melropolitan Stock Exchange of India (MSEI)
and Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE)

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited
205(A), 2nd Floor, Piramal Agastya Corporate Park,
Kamani Junction, LBS Road, Kurla (West), Mumbai-400 070

*tentative dates given in point no. 14(i), 14 (ii) and 14 (iii)

Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
7, Lyons Range, Murgighata, Dalhousie, Kolkata,
West Bengal 700001

The Company has paid the listing fees to MSEI Stock Exchange for the financial
year 2024-25.

vi)  Market Price Data of equity shares of the Company:
The High and low prices of the equity shares of the Company at Melropolitan
Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI) for the year ended 31% March, 2025
are as under:-

Month Share Price (Rs) at MSEI

High Low
April, 24 10 10
May, 24 10 10
June,24 10 10
July ,24 10 10
August,24 10 10
september, 24 10 10
October,24 10 10
November,24 10 10
December,24 10 10




January,25 10 10
February,25 10 10
March,25 10 10

vii) Performance of the share price of the Company in comparison with BSE

sensex, CRISIL ete.: Not Appiicable as shares are not frequently traded

viii) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

M/s Mas Services Limited

T-34, 2" Floor, Okhla [ndustrial Area,
Phase- 11, New Delhi-110020
Telephone No: 01126387281

[E-mail id: investor@masserv,com

Share Transfer System

As Per Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to
time, securitics can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from
April 1, 2019, except in casc of a request received for transmission or
transposition of securities. SEBI fixed March 31, 2021 as the cut-off date for re-
lodgment of transfer deeds; the shares that are re-lodged for transfer must be
issued only in demat mode. Requests for share (ransfers, rematerialization and
iransposition arc attended to within the stipulated time period. The share
cerlificate is returned/ issued in accordance with the time period as stipulated by
the Listing Regulations and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company’s share transfer and related operations are currently being handied
by Mas Services Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) who are
registered with the SEBI as a Category 1 Registrar,

Distribution of sharcholding as on March 31, 2025
Range of Number of | Percentage of | Number of | Percentage
Shareholdings Shareholders | Shareholders Shares of Shares
1-5000 37 88.09 100 0.01
5001-10000 0 0 0 0
10001-20000 0 0 0 0
2000130000 0 0 0 0
30001-40000 0 0 0 0
40001-50000 0 0 0 0
50001-100000 3 7.14 216720
100001 and above 2 4.77 623012
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TOTAL

42

100.00

839832

xi) Categories of sharcholding as on March 31, 2025

Category of Sharcholder Number of Shares Percentage of Shares

A, Promoter and Promoter Group 623012 74.19

B. Public Shareholding

Foreign Institutional Investors 0 0.00

Foreign Banks 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investors — 0 ¢.00
Corp.
Mutual Funds/UTT 0 0.00
Financial Institutions/Banks 0 0.00
Bodies Corporate 216720 25.80
Individuals 100 0.01
Centra] Government/  State 0 0
Covernment(s)
NRls and OCBs 0 0
Other Directors & Relatives 0 0
Unclaimed Suspense Account 0 0
Others 0 0
Total Public Shareholding 216820 25.81
Total Shareholding (A+B) 839832 100.00

Xi)

Dematerialization of shares

100.00

The shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in the demateralised form and
are available for trading under both the Depository Systems- NSDL (National
Securities Depository Lid,) and CDSL (Central Depository Services (India) Ltd).
As on March 31, 2025, a total of 8,39,732 equity shares of the Company, which

forms 99.99% of the share capital, stood dematerialized.
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xii)

15.

16.

17,

Under the Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number
(ISIN} allotied to the Company's equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- each is
INEBOOEQT017.

Qutstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or other Convertible Instruments

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible
instruments during the year and hence, as on March 31, 2025, the Company does
not have any outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments.

xiv) Plant Locations: Nil
xv) Address for Correspondence

Sharcholders are requested to address all their correspondence concerning shares to
the Company's Repistrar and Share Transfer Agents, Mas Services Limited at the
following addresses mentioned below:

Mas Services Limited

1-34, 2" Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I,
New Delhi-110020

Or at the registered office of the Company at:

M/s N K Textile Industries Limited
Omaxe Square, Plot No.14, 3" Floor,
Jasola Disirict Centre, Jasola, New Delhi-110025

xvi) Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L17299DL1983PLC163230

DETAILS OF UNCLAIMED SHARLES
Equity Shares in the Suspense Aceount

The requisite disclosures under Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, in
respect of the Unclaimed Shares, pursuant to Regulation 39 read with Schedule VI of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 are not applicable on the Company as there are no
equity shares held in ‘Unclaimed Suspense Account”,

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

The certificate required under Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, duly signed
by Mr. Gopal Sharma, CFO and CEO on 27" May, 2025 was placed before the Board
also it is enclosed to this report.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Corporate Governance Report forms part of the Annual Report.
The Company is regularly filing the Quarterly Compliance Report on Corporale

Governance with the Stock Exchanges as per the format specified in Regulation o)
of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.




18.

COMPLIANCE

As Per Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, a Certificate from practicing Company
Secretary with respect to compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipultated in Para E of Schedule V to S§EBI Listing Regulations, 2015 forms part of the
Annual Report.

For and on behalf of the Roard
For M/s N K Textile Industries Limited

4 Ao sty
) + 4‘:‘_:.,'
G
c\f [ Ui Dt
(Balbir Singh) (Pumit Kysyar Chellaramani) \\4{\&
Director , Director >

DIN: 00027438 : DIN: 05147900

Date: 17.07.2025
Place: New Delhi
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Registered office: Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14, 3™ Floor, Jasola District Centre

N K Textile Industries Limited

Jasola, New Delhi-110025
CIN: L17299DL1983PLC163230, Tel: +91 11 61119429

Email Id: n.ktextiles123@amail.com, website:www,nktil.com

I

I, Gopal Sharma, Chief Executive officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify

that:

1,

2

I have reviewed the audited Financial Results of the Company for the Quarter and year
ended on 31.03.2025 and to the hest of our knowledge and belief:

These statement do not contain any malerially untrue statement or omit any material
fuct or contain statement that might be misleading;

The audited financial result present a true and fair view of the Company’s affair and
are in compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year ended on March 31, 2025 which are fraudulent, illegal or
violative of the Company’s code of business conduct.

I am responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that 1 have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting,

There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting
and in accounting policies and that there is no instance of any fraud involving
management having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over

financial reporting.

Gopi Sharma
CEQ & CFO
New Delhi
Date:

sl



Fh.: +81-11-41627363, 26813033, 26816363
KUMAR CHOPRA & ASSOCIATES E-mail : kea@kcaconsultancy.cam
. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS www.keaconsultancy.com

B-12 (G.F.), Kalingdi Calory, Mear Maharani Bagh, New Dealhi - 110065

INDEPENDENT AUIMTOR'S REFORT

To the Members of N K TEXTILE INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Aadit of the Standalone Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of N K TEXTILE
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and the material accounting policies information and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “standalone finandal statements”).

In our opinion and lo the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including Indian accounting standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, of
the state of affatrs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

2. DBasis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified

under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the “‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements’
section of our reporl. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics jssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Fthics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters’ are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the standalone fAnancial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide,
separate opinion on thegse matters, Based on our checks and on the basis of info

Branches . g . .
F-18, Angsl Maga Mall, Kaushambhi, Ghaziabad {(U.F.) - 201010, Tel. : 0120-4331621
131, Qutab Flaza, DLF-I, Gurugram, Haryana - 122002, Tal, : +81-9818514428
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Kurnar Chopra & Associates N K Textiles Industries Limited
Chartered Accountunts - Audit Report FY 2024-25

and explanation from the management we have determined thal there are no key audit
matters {o be communicated in our report.

4. Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Reporl
thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information, The other information comprises the information included in the Board's
Report including its Annexure and Sharcholder's Information but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The report is expected
lo be made available o us after the date of this Auditor’'s Report.

Our Opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statement, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
80, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other informaton, f we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to conmunicate the matter to those charged with
governance,

5. Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Cormpany’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in
equity, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudenl; and design,
implementation and mainfenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial stateiment that give

a true and fair view and are free from material migstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
asgessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unlegg.=
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
realistic alternative but to do so,

Page 2 0f 11
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Kumar Chopra & Associates N K Textiles Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants Audit Report FY 2024-25

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

6. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 5As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements,

As parl of an audif in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under secton
143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

fi. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

iv.  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report b the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cauge the Company to cease to continue ag a
going concern,

v.  Evaluate the overall presentation, siructure and comtent of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in.@
manner that achieves fair presentatio.

Page 3 of 11
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statement that,
individually or in apgregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significarit deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to comnmunicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore key audit matters. We describe these audit matters
in our audit report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters
and when, in exlremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A, a staternent on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Qrder, to the extent applicable. :

II. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Cornpany so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement wlth the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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£

disqualified as on 315t March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2} of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Qur report expresses an

unmaodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,

As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that in our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid
any managerial rernuneration pursuant to provisions of section 197 to the Act,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Anditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opirion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any matertal foreseeable losses.

iii, ~There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 1o the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (i} The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note no. 26 to the standalone financial statements, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bencficiaries.

(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note no. 26 to the standalone financial statements, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, divectly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

provide eny guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the [l
Beneficiaries. §
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(ii1) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumslances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the management representations
under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Clause iv above contain any material
misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has

used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has

a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the sare has operated

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software,

Further, during our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail

feature being tampered with and audit trail has been preserved by the
company as per statutory requirement.

For Kumar Chopra & Associates

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Re@Wr: 000131N)
‘ e

R. K. Aggarwal B-12,{G.F)
Place of signature: New Delhi Partner : mwon )8
Date: 27.05.2025 (M. No 81510) \
UDIN: 25081510BMMKPIN258
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ANNEXURE “A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 7(I) of our report of even date on the standalone financial
statements of N K TEXTILE INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the Year ended 31st March 2025

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we state that:

(i) (a} The company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets; thus paragraph 3(i)(a).(b),(c), and (d) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at year end for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

(ii) The company does not have any inventories; thus paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable,

(iii) The investments made in other companies are not prejudicial to the interest of the
company. The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to comparnes, firrng, Limited
Liability Partmerships or any other parties, during the year, thus clauses (a), (c), (d). ()
and (f) of paragraph 3(iif) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of Act, with respect to
investments made. Section 185 is not applicable as no loan/ guarantee/security is given/
provided.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148 of the Companies Act for the products/services of the Cornpany.

(vii) (a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Goods and Services tax, Provident Pund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other
statutory dues, as applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities and there are no
arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year concerned for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

() There are no statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) During the course of audil, we did not come across any transactions not recorded in the
books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax agsessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) (a) The company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution,
banks, government, or debenture holders during the year, thus paragraph 3(ix)(a) of the
Oxder is not applicable.

(b) As per the information and explanation given to us, the company has not been
declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
(c) The company has not availed any term loans, thus paragraph 3(ix){(c) of the Order i3
not applicable,
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(i)

(d) The compary has not raised any funds on short term basis, thus paragraph 3(ix}(d) of
the Order is not applicable

(¢) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint venture.

(fy The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries, associates, or joint venture.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instraments) during the year.
(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company
or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been [iled in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

() According lo the information and explanation given to us, Do whistle blower
complaints were received by the Company during the year by the company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and thus Paragraph (xii) of the Order is not

applicable.

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xevi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions entered into by the company during the year with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has adequate Internal
audit system commensurale with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the internal auditor for the period under audit have been considered
by us.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash lransactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company’s
registration as NBEC with Reserve Bank of India under section 45-1A of RBI Act, 1534
was cancelled by RBI vide Order dated October 2019. The company is now operating as
Unregistered Core Investment company (CIC) as defined in ‘Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended, for which no registration is
required from RBL

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Fmancial or Housing Finance
activities being only Unregistered Core Invesiment company.

(¢} According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is an
unregistered Core Investment company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India and it continues to fulfil the criteria of a Unregistered CIC.

(d) According to the information and explanation given lo ug, the Group has seven
unvegistered CIC including the company. AR A
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(xvid)

(i)

(xix)

The Company has not incurred cash loss in current financial year and in the preceding
financial year,

There has been no resignation of the stafutory anditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realivation of financial
agsets and payment of financial Habilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Dircctors and Management plans,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its Habilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year froin the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 of the Act on spending on social corporate activities are
not applicable to the Company hence reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not

applicable,

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Nuznber: 0001311N)

Place of signature: New Delhi Pariner

Date: 27.05.2025 (M. No 81510) ‘
UDIN: 25081510BMMKPD7A
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ANNEXURE “B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 7(II)(f) of our report of even date on the standalone financial
statemenits of N K TEXTILE INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the Year ended 31st March 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statoments of N K Textile Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintamning mternal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements based on the mntermal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Finmancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and exrors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors” Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable agsurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit uvolves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference o standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assesement of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

o
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financiul Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) perlain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accuralely and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that tramsactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
- only in accordance with authorizalions of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasopable assurance regarding prevention or timely detechon of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the standalone financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected,
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements to fufure periods are subject to the xisk that the internal
financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deleriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to stendalone financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial
statements crileria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Kumar Chopra & Associates

Place of signature: New Delhi

Date: 27.05.2025 (M. No 81510)

UDIN: 25081510BMM.
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M K Textite industries Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2025
Afl armounts in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note As at 313t As at 31st
Mo. March, 2025 March, 2024
ASSETS
Financial Assets
- Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 0.22 0.36
- Bank balance other than cash and cash eguivalents 3 99.19 97.57
- [nvestments 4 31,674.32 16,612.67
- Other Financfal Assets 5 0.26 0,25
1,774.19 16,710,85
Non-Financial Assets
- Current Tax Assets (Net) ] 0.63 0.60
Q.65 0.60
Total Azsats 11,774,84 16,711.45
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial Liabflities
- Other Financlal Liabilities 7 1.12
1.421
Hon Financial Liabitities
- Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6 4,500.66 J,a16.71
- Other Non Financial Liabilities 8 0,06 '0.06
4,500.72 3.816.77
Total Habilities 4,501.85 1,817.99
Equfty
- Equity Share Capitat 9 B3.98 83,98
~ (ther Equity 10 17,189,02 12,80%.48
Total equity 27.273.00 ¥2.894.46
Total lfabilities and equity 11,774.84 16,711.45
Notes forming part of the standalene Financlal Statements 1-27

In terms of our report of even date attached
For Kurmnar Chopra & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Na: 000131}

LB COLOHY |
eV D

R.K. Aggarwat

Partner

Membership No. 081510
Place: New Delhi

Date; 27th May, 2025

ifwal

DIN No.00029286

-’ Kumar Sharma
Chief Financial Officer &
Chief Executive Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-

Baiblr Singh
Dirgctor
DIN Na. 00027438

B

Ankit Chaturvedi
Company Secretary



N K Textile trdustries Limited
Standalone Statemeant of Prefit and Loss for the year ended 315t March, 2025
All amounts in T Lakhs urtless otherwise stated

Particulars Hate Mo, Far the year For the year
ended 115t endead 31st
March, 2025 March, 1024
incoma

Revenue from Operations

Interest income i 6.57 6.02

Ocher Income 12 0,02 0.05
Total Income 6.59 5,08
Expenses
Employee Benefit Expenses 13 0.30 1,80
Other Expenses 14 A.44 1,78
Total Expenses 4,74 h.58
Profit Before Tax 1.85 0.49
Tax Expense: 6
Current Tax 0.01 -
Current Tax for Earlier.Years 0.0t .
Deferred Tax “ .
0.02 -
Profit for the year 1.81 0,49

Other Comprehensive tncoma

Items that will not to be reclassified to Prafit or Loss
(i} Gain/(Loss) on financfal fnstrurnents through other 15,061.65 5,067.03
comprehensive income

(#) Income tax relating to items that are not to be (6813.94) (1,191.57)
reclassified in profit and loss

Tatal Other Cornprehensive Income - (1+1f) 14,377, 71 3,875.52
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 14,379,534 1 876.01
Earning per equity share of Face value per share $10/- each 15

Basic (Amountin T) 0.22 0.06
Diluted (Amaunt, in %) ‘ 0.22 0.06
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements 1-27

In terms of our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Na: 0001314

Sunit Agakwal E‘lilblr Singh

Director Director
M No.000292864 DIN No. 00027438

R.K. Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No. 0B1510 \D\‘ k,
Place; New Deihi (\ln A
Date: 17th May, 2025
Ankit Chaturvedi
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Chief Executive Qfficer

=



N K Textilé Industries Limited

Standalong Staterment of Changes in Equity for the year ended 315t March, 2024

All amaunts in ¥ Lakhs yunless utherwise stated

{m) Equlty Share Capital
Particular : ® in Lakhs
Balanca a5 ot st April, 2023 83,08
Changges in equity share capital during the yoar -
Balarice a5 at 31st March, 2024 §3.94
Changes n-eayity share capital during the year .
Balance as at 315t March, 2025 83.%8
{b) Other pquity
Partteutary General Statutory Retalned  |Fquity Instruments Total
Rezerves Rasarve® Earnings through Cther
Comprahensive
Income
Balanee at at 1ot Apeil, 2073 239.71 0,48 (25.97) 8,719,328 8,935.47 |
Brofit for the year . - 0,49 - 0.49
?;:IGI‘ Comprehensive income for the year, net of Income . . _ 1,875.52 3,875.51
‘MI'IW a3 At 315t Murch, 2024 239.71 0.48 (25, 48) 12,594.77 12,809.48
Profit for the year - - 1.83 . 1.83
Qther Comprehensive income for the year, net of Income .
e - - - 14,377.11 14,377.74
Halance as at 315 March, 2025 239,71 0.45 {23.45) 26,972.48 27,189.02
* Craated under saction 45-1C(1) of Rexerve Bank of indla Ack, 1934 a3 a Statutory Reserve,
1-27

Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements

In terrns of aur report of even date attached
For Kurar Chopra & Associatws
Chartered Accountants

Firrn Registration NO: 0001278

Lerigud

R.K. Aggarwal

Partner

Marnbership Mo, 081510
Place: Naw Dalhi

Date: 27th May, 2025

T ABRY
(i COLDINY

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directara

Gopal Kumar Sharma
Chief Financial Officer &

Chinf Executive Officer

T4

Bathir Singh
Director
DIM No. (027438

AR

Ankit Chaturvedf
Company Secretary



N K Textile Industries Limited

Standalane Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 315t March, 2025

All amounts in % Lakhs unless otherwise stated

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended 31st March, anded 315t
2015 March, 2024

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Met profit/(loss) before tax and exceptional items 1.85 0.49
Adjustments:
Change in Other Financial Liabilities (0.10) 0.09
Change in Other Non Financial Liabilities . (0.02)
Change in Other Bank Balances (1.82) (1.34)
Change in Other Financial Asset {0.01) (0.02)
Change in Other Non-Financial Asset . .
Cash generated from Operations (0.07) (Q.80)
Direct Tax paid {0.07) 0.2
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) {0.14) (0.48)
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities (3) . .
€. Cash Flows from Financing Activities (C) - -
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) (0.4} (0.48)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.36 0.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.22 0.6
Net Increase/(decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (0.14) {0.48)

Components of cash and cash aquivalents are disclosed in Note No. 2

Notes forming part of the Financial Statameants

In tetms of our report of even date attached
For Kumar Chopra & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regfstration NO: 00013055,

P A
,.Jf'd\‘?.’n'?"‘ el ""\S“l\::\

Directer
DIN No,.00029286

R.K. Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No. 081510

Place; New Dethi
Date: 27th May, 2025

Chief Financial Officer &
Chief Executive Officer

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

)

Balbir $ingh
Director
DIN No. 00027438

o B

Ankit Chaturvedi
Company Secretary
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N K Textlle industries Limited
Notas to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Note 1:

Corporate information

N.K. Textile fndustries Limited {'the Company’} is a company limited by shares, incorporated in
India on 9th February 1983. The Company is fully owned by Indian Shareholders. CIN of the
Company is L17299DL1983P1LC163230. The addresses of its registered office is Omaxe Square,
Plot Na. 14, 3rd Floor, lasola, New Delhi-110025. The Company Is a listed, unregistered core
Investment Company (CIC) in terms of Notification No. DNBR. PD.003/03.10.119/2016-17
dated 25th August, 2016 issued by RBI as amended. Hence, the Company s not required to get
Registration as Non-Banking Financial Company.

Statement of compliance
These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with ind AS notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

Basis of preparation and presentation

a. Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements are presented in Indlan Rupees, The financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue.

. Use of Estimates
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make
astimates and assumptions that affect the reported balance of assets and Iiabl!ftles revenues
and expenses and disclosures relating to mntmgent liahilities,

The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements
are prudent and reascnakle, Future results may differ from these estimates. Any revision to
the accounting estimates or difference between the estimates and the actual resulis are
recognised in the periods In which the results are known/materialise or the estimates are

revised.

Material accaunting policies

Revenua Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Revenue (s

recognised when {or as) Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring promised
goods and services.

Interest Income i
Interestincome on fmed depasits is accounted for on accrual” 7



Dividend income
Dividend income from shares/ mutual funds is recognised for when the right to receive it Is

established.

b.  Cash Flow Statement .
Cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method, whereby, profit/(loss) before tax

is adjusted for the effects of transition of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flow from operating, investing, and
financial activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

¢.  Exceptional ltems
On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining
to the ordinary activities of the Company, is such that its disclosure improves an
understanding of the performance of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as
an exceptional item and accordingly disclosed in the Notes to Accounts.

d.  Taxation

Current tax

Provision for current tax for the period is based on taxable income computed in accordance
with the provisions of the income-tax Act, 1961,

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for the year. Taxabie profit differs from
‘profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of ftems of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Current Tax related to Other
Comprehensive Income items are recognised jn Other Comprehensive hcame schedule.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax resuiting from “temporary differences” hetween book and taxable profit is
accounted for using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted as on balance sheet date.
The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty that the asset will be realised in future. Deferred tax that relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

€. Financa Costs
Finance costs comprise interest expense on loans and borrowings, Barrowing costs that are
not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss using effective interest rate (EIR). Borrowing
cost may include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

f.  cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in vaiue.

E. Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted

average number of equit}e sharﬂs outstandlng during the year. Diluted earnings per share
fivethe t;l_i'unation of basic earnings per share to dilutive potential

1



h. Provisions

Provislons are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amourit of the obligation. .

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When the provision s measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of time value is material).

i.  Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financiai liability or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, (in the case of financial assets not
recorded at falr value through profit or Joss) transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
{regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, ie., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset, -

Subsequent measurament
For purposes of subsequent measurerment, financial assets are classrfled in three

categories:

Financial assets at amartised cost:
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset Js held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for

collecting contractual cash flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest {$PP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income {FVTOCI):
A financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met
unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under fair value option.

(a) The objective of the business mode| is achieved bath by collecting contractual cash

flows and selling the financial asset, and
{b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any asset, which does n%m{ee}; 2 criteria
L g i,

for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, Is classifled as at Wﬁ e .
t. 12
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Equity investments:

All equity investrents, except jinvestments in subsidiaries and associates and non-currant
investrment in unquoted equity shares, in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value,
with all changes recognized in the Statement of profit and toss, The investments in shares
of subsidiaries and associates valued at cost. Non-current investments in unquoted equity
shares are measured at fair value, with all changes recognized in the other comprehensive

income,

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financlal asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the Company's balance

sheet} when;

*  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

»  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without materia! delay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Campany has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing invoivement. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated lfability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment

The company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI instruments. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk,

Financial liabilitias
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial Habilities at falr value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments In an effective hedge, as appropriate,

All financial labilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial (iabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments, '

Ha



Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial fiabilities are classified as held far trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term, This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss
are designated as such at the inltial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, thea Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in
the staternent of profit or loss, The Company has not designated any financial liability as
at fair value through profit and ioss.

Falr value measuremant
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset ar
transfer the liability takes place either:

¥ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

¥ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability Is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling It to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
staternents are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

¥ Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liahilities;

# Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Inp,‘, th

fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable:/ .

[
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¥ Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lawest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unohservable;

For assets and liahilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation {hased on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved, wherever required, for valuation of significant assets, such as
properties and unqueted financial assets, and significant liahilities, such as contingent
consideration. Involvement of external valuers Is declded upon annually by the Board of
directors and the selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The Board of directors, aher
discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation technlques and inputs to
use for each case,

At each reparting date, the board of directors analyses the movements in the values of
assets and liabilities which are required to, be remeasured or re-assessed as per the
Company’s accounting policies. Far this analysis, the board of directors verifies the major
Inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The board of directors, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares
the change in the fair value of each asset and lability with relevant external sources to
determine whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabiifties on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risk5 of the asset or liability and the
leve| of the fair value hierarchy as explained ahove,.
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N K Textile Industries Limited

Notes to Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2029

All ampunts in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

As at 31st As at ¥ist
March, 2025 March, 2074
1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks
= In Current Accounts 0.22 0.36
0.22 0.3
3 Dank belance other than cash and cash eguivalents
Bank deposits with orfginal maturity excesding 3 99,19 97.57
months and uptoe 12 months
99,39 97,57
4 Investments
As at 315t March, 2025 Az at 315t March, 7024
Quantity Amount Quantity Arnount
Investinent in Equity Instruments, fully paid up,
unguated
at, Fafr Yalued through other comprahensive
- International Research Park Lab Limited 37,500 55.93 37,500,00 110.91
~ K.K.Modi Investment and Financial Sarvicag 37,849 31,470.32 37,819.00 14,353.46%
Pvt, Limited
Total investrnants at FYTOCI (a) 31,526.25 16,464.460
at deemnead cost .
- HMa, Udyop Private Limited- Assoclate 400,000 103.06 400,000 103,06
Camparry (holding 40%)
= Rafputany Devetopers Limited- Substdiary 4,499,985 45.01 4,499,986 45,01
Company{holding 81,85%) ' ' l
Total investments at desmed cost (b) 148.07 148.07
Total iInvestments{a+b) 3,474,312 16,612.67
i) Investements in india M,674.32 16,612,867
) Investments outsfde Indla - .
Tatal {nvestments 31,674.32 16,612,47
As at 315t Az at 31st
March, 2023 March, 2024
3 Other Finanical Assats .
Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.26 Q.25
0.26 0.2%
6 Income Taxes
a, Currant tax Assets and Liabilities
Partictlars As at 115t As at 315t
March, 2025 March, 2024
Current tax assets (Met)
incarne tax pald (Met of provision for taxation) 0,60
0,60

g2



N K Textile Industries Limited

Motes to Standaione Financiat Statements for the yvear sanded 313t March, 1025

All amounts 11 ® Lakhs untess otherwise stated

b, Components of Income Tax Expanse/(lncome)

For the year

Far the year

Particulars
andad 115t anded 315t
Mmarch, 2025 March, 1024
Recognised in Statement of profir and loss
Current, tax for current year 0.01
Current tax for eartier year 0.0 -
0.02 -
Recognisad fn Gther comprehensive incorme (683.94) (1,191.5Y)
Deferred tax (663,94) {1,191.51)

€. Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

Recanciliation of taxes to the ameunt camputed by applying the statutory income tax rata to the income befare taxes is

summarised below:

For the year

For the year

Particutars
anded 31t ended 315t
March, 2025 March, 1024
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 1.85 0.49
Appticable tax rates in Indla 25.148% 25.168%
Computed Tax Charge 0.47 0,12
Tax effect on Exernpted Income. “ .
Tax effact of eariier year tax 0.01 -
Tax effect of brought forward losses adiusted {0,46) (0.12)
Income Tax Expense at effective rate of tax 1.08% (Previous Year 0%) 0.01 -
d. Daferrad Taxes
Deferred Tax Liabiifties on
- Investinent In equity Instruments 4,500.66 3,816.71
Deferred tax ljabilities(net} 4,500.66 3,814,711
T Other Financial Liabilitles
Audit Fae Payable 0.49 0,49
QOther Expense Payable (.63 0.7
1.12 1.22
8 Other Non-Financial Liabilities
Statutory dues 0.06 0.06
0.06 0.06




H K Taxtile Industries Limited

Notes to Standafone Financial Statements for the year ended 115t March, 2015

All amnpunts in ¥ Lakhs unless atherwise stated

9

9.1

.1

2.3

9.4

Equity Share Capital

Authorised
Equity Shares of Re 107+ each
Preference Shares of Re. 10/- each

lssyed, snimcribed & patd gp capital
Equity $hares of Re 10/- each

Tertns and rights atlached ta equfty shares:

The Cortipany has lssued only one class of equity shares havin

As at 11st March, J07%

Asz at 21t March, 2024

Humber of ¥ fn Lakhs Humbar of % i Lakhs
Shares Shares
1,000,000 100,00 1,000,000 100,00
500,000 50,00 500,000 50,00
1,500,000 150.00 1,500,000 150,00
839,802 832.98 839,432 §1.98
819,832 81.98 B39 812 3,98

§ a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Equity Shaves entitles the holder to participnte in

dividends, and to share in the proceads of winding up of the Campany in proportion to the number of and amaunts paid on the shares held afrer

distributlon of all praferential amounts,

Each holder of equity shares |5 entitled to ane vote per share, -

The Company declares and pays dividends i Indlan rupees, The dividand if any,
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividand.

proposed by the Board of Directars Is subject to the approval of the

Recanciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding as at the baglnning and at the end of the reporting perod:

As at 315t March, 2015

Particulars

Equity Shares cutstanding at the beginning of the year

Change during the year
Equity Shares outstanding at the end of tha yoar

Az at 313t March, 2024

Number of X In Lakhs Humber of R in Lakhs
Shares Shares

839,832 81.98 810,832 81.98

835,832 43.94 839,832 21,98

Detalls of equity shareholders halding mora than 5% shares in the company
As at I1st March, 2028 As at J1st March, 3014
Hame of shareholder Humber of F inn Lakhz Number of % in Lakhs
Sharas Sharaz

K. K., Modf Investment & FiRancial Sarvices Bvi Lbd 379,012 ALK 373,012 A, 47%
HMA Udyog Private Limited 250,000 29.77% 250,000 29.77%
Azure Prodets Private Limited 98,720 11.75% 98,7210 11.75%
Narayan Salex Private Limitad 60,030 7.15% 40,050 7.15%
Trend Agencies Private Limited 57,950 4. 90% 37,950 4.90%
Dataits of shares held by promatars
As at 115t March, 2028

Number of Change Number of % Holding % Changa
Mam® of the promoter shares as at during the  shares as at during the

01.04.2024 yaar 11,031.2025 yair
K.H.Modi Investrent & Financial Services Pt Ltd 171,012 - 702 44,42% Q.00%
HMA tdyog Private Limited 250,000 - 250,000 20.7T% 0.00%
As at J1st March, 2024

Humber of Change Mumber of % Holding % Changa
Name of the promater shares as at during the  shares as at during the

01.04.2013 yaar 1.01.2024 yeor
K. H.Modi Investment & Financial Services Pvt Lid 371,012 - 373,012 44, 42% 0.00%
HMA Udyow Private Limited 250,000 - 250,000

g4




N K Textile Industries Limited

Hutes to Standalene Financlal Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025

All amounts In ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

10  Other equity
General Reserve

tatilory reserve

Retained Earnings

Fair valug through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTQC!) reserve

10,1 General Reserve
Opening Balance

10,2 Statutory ressrve
Qpening Balance

10,3 Retained Earnings
Opentng balance

Net profit/(Loss) for the year

10.4 Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

Cpening Balance

Add: Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of Income Lax

As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
219.71 239, 1
0.48 (48
{23.65}) (25.48)
26,972.48 12,594.77
27,189.02 12.809.48
239.71 239.71
0.48 0,48
.48 0.48
{25.48) (25.97)
1.83 0.49
(23.65) (25.48)
12,594.77 B,719.25
14.377.71 1,875,52
26,972.48 12.594.77

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows ;
i) General Reserve: Amourt set aside from retained eamnings as a reserve to be utilised for permissibile general purposes

as per law.

(i)  Sratutory Reserve created under section 45-IC of Reserve ﬁank of India Act, 1934 when the Company was registered as
NBFC. Now the Company 15 not a registered NBFC, transfer to statutory reserve is not required,

(til) Retained Earnings: It represents the surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss and appropriations, if any,

(v}  Equity Instruments through Other Comprahensive Income: The fair value change of the equity thstrumerits measured
threugh Other Comprehensive Income s recognised and reflected under Equity Instruments through Other

Comprehensive Income, On disposal, the cumidative

Retained Earnings.

8s




N K Textile Industries Limjted

Notes to Standalone Financiai Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

All amounts in € Lakhs unless otherwise stated

11 Interest Income
interest Income from FDR

12 Other Income

Interest on Income Tax Refund

Miscellaneous iIncome

13 Employee benefit expenses

Salary

14 Other Expenses
Advertisement
Auditor’s Remuneration
Custodian Charges
Listing Fees
Professional Fees
Conference Expenses
Conveyance Expenses
EDP Charges'
Miscellenous Expensas

14.1 Payment to auditor as:
- Statutory Audit Fee
- Limited Review Fee

6

For the year.

For the year

ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2015 March, 2024
6.57 6.02
6.57 6.02
0.02 0.05
. 0.0
0.02 0.05
0.30 1.80
0.30 B0
0.31 0.
0.89 0.89
0.33 0.58
0.65 0.6%
1.65 1,00
- 0.14
0.05 -
0.7 0.16
0.39 0.06
4,44 3.78
0.53 0.53 -
0.36 0.36
0.89 0.89




M K Taxtila [ndustries Limited

Motes ta Standalone Firancial Statements for the year endod 31st March, 202%

All arnounts tn ® Lakhs unless otharwlse stated

15 PRisclosure as per Ind AS 33 on "Earnings per share":

¥ in Lakhs
Particulars Far the year ended | For the year anded
I1st March, 2025 315t March, 2024

Profft far the pertod (€ in Thausands) 1.83 Q.49
Weightage average number of shares (for Basic/diluted) 839,832 839,832
Face Value per share () 10 10
Earnings per share-Bagic (T) 0.22 0.04
Earnings per share-Diluted (%) 0.2 4,06

16 There are no contingent Habilities or committements as on Balance Sheet date.

17 Disclosures of transactions with related party as roquired by Ind AS- 24

17.1 Name of Related parties and nature of relationships:
S.No. Name of related party Relationship
Rajputana Developers Limited Subsidiary Company

Super Investment (India) Limited
HMA Udyog Private Limited

K.K.Modi investment & Financial Services Pyt Ltd

(1] A Led P -

Key Managerment Personnel (KMP) of Company;
Mr. Sunil Agarwal

Mr, Balbir 5ingh

Mr. Rajeay Kapo}.\r

Mr. Pumit Kurmar Chellaramani
Ms. Anshu Maheshwari

Mrs. Beenu Agarwal

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Gupta

M. Gopal Kumar Sharma

Mr, Surindra Kapoor

Ankit Chiaturvedi

17,2 Transactions with related party during the year:

{a) Salary to Mr. Surindra Kapoor
{b}  Conveyance o Ms. Anshu Maheshward

There are no autstanding balances as at year end.

Subsidiary through subsidiary company
Associate of the Company

Entity of which the Company fs an associate

Director

Director

independent Director (w.e.f. 13th august, 2024)
Independent Director (w.e.f. 7th November, 2024)
Director (w.e,f. 7th November, 2024)

Independent Directar (ceased w.e.f, 7th November, 2024)
Independant Director (ceased w.ea.f. 14th Novemnber, 2024}

Chief Financfat Offlcer & Chiaf Executive Officer (w.e.f. 11th
August, 2024)

Chief Financial Officer & Chief Executive Officer (Ceased w.e.f.
11th June 2024)

Cornpany Secretary

¥ in Lakhs
For the year ¢nded  For the year ended
31st March, 2025 st March, 2074

0.30
0.05

87



M K Textile Industries Limited ]
Motes to Standalone Financlal Statements for the vear ended 315t March, 2025
All amounts in ® Lakhs unless otherwise stated

18

19

20

21

22

13

24

13

16

The Govermment of India has changed fncome tax rates on long term capital fram 23.296% with indexation benefit ta 14.30%
without, Indexation benefit on unquated investments w,e.1 Assessmant Year 2025-26. The change in rate has resulted in reduction
of deferred tax on OC| ftems of Re. 1,46,987.00 Thousands and the current yaar deferred tax charge on OCT items a5 per naw
rates is amounting to Rs. 2,15,381,64 Thousands. The net impact of these two has been shown on the face of Statement of Profit
and Loss under Other comprahensive income &s deferred tax charge of Rs. 68,394.64 Thousands.

The Company has made detafled assessment of its laquidity position for the next few months and of the recoverability of carrying
velues of its assets comprising of investrents as at the Balance sheat date, and based on the intemal and external infarmation
upte the date of approval of thess financial statements ncluding ecanwmit Torecasls, has concluded that no materal

adfjustmants are required to be made In the financial resuits.
Based on the current indicators of future ecanomic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these
assets. The company 13 of the opinion that there is certainty that company will be able ta meet its all-finaneial commitments in

next ane year,

The Company is an unrepistered Core Investment Company (unregistered CiC) in terms of Motiflzation No. DoR (NBFC) (PD) CC. No,
117/03.10.001/2020-21 dated August 13, 2020 i3sued by Messrve Bank of India as Updated by subsequent notifications issued
from time to time, Hence, the Company is net required ta get registration as Non-Banking Financial Company as well as Direction
fssled for CIC companies are not applicable te ft,

Ratio Analysls: As the company & an Unreglstered CIC as per the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, the
ratfos specified for MBFCs are not applicable to the company.

The Company Is primarily engaged in the business of tnvestments which s the only aperating segment as per IMD AS 108 and
operating In indla anly,

The Company has complied with the number of layers preserthed under clause 47 of sectian 2 of companies Act, 2013 read with
the rules.

Provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act on CSR is not applicable to the Company.,

The company has not dealt with any crypto currency ar equivalent product during the year.

No funds have been advanced or loaned o, invested {efther fram borrowed funds or share premium ar any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) ar entity(les), including foreign entitles (“Intermediaries™) with the
understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party fdentified by or an
behalf of the Company (Uitimate Beneficiares). The Company has not recelved any fund from ahy party{s) (Funding Party) with
the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indtrectly lend ar tnvest in other persons ar entitles identified by
or on behalf of the Cothpany (“Uithmate Beneficiarles”) or provide any guarantee, security.orthedike on behalf of the Uttimate

Beneficlaries,” ;

»
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N K Textlle Industries Limited
Notes to Standalore Financial Statements for tha year snded 31st March, 2025

Al amounts in ¥ Lakhs unfess otherwise stated

17 Finbncial inskruments

A Fair value hierarchy
The Company determines fair values of fts finaneial instrumants accarding to the following hierarchy:
Level 1; Valuation based on quoted market prite: finanical instruments with quated prices for identical instruments in active markets that the

Compary can access at the measurament, date.

Level 2: Valuation based on ysing observable Inputs: financial tnstruments measured using inputs, other than gquated prices Included within
lavel 1, that are observable for such ftems, directly or indirectly.

kevel 3: Valuation technigue with significant unobservable inputs: financial instruments valuad using valuation techniques where one or mare
SIRNIFICANT INPULs Aré unobservable. (e main tkems in this category are unmuoted equity instruments. he fair vatuation of the major unguoted
equity fvestment has been carded aut by an Independent valuer ustng the asset approach valuation techrigue. The valuer has used significant
Inputs lthe market duta, growth prajectians, future cash flow discounting, P/E muttiple, etc,

The following table provides an analysis of financlal Instruments that are measured at fair value and have been grouped inta Lavel 1, Lavel 2
and Level 7 below:

Ax at 31st March, 2025 Carrying Amount Falr Yalue Lavel 1 Level 1 Level 3

Finantial ussets
' Financiel instruments at amortised cost:

Cash and cash equivakents 0.22 0.22 . . -
Other bank balances } P9.19 99,19 . - -
Other Financiat Assets 0.26 0,16 B . .

Financial instruments at FYTOC);
Investment in

«Equity Shares - Unguoted 11,526.25 J1,526.25 . - 1,524.25
Tatal financial assets 31,616,12 31,624,12 - B 31,526.25
Financizl Habilitles

Firancial instrurments at amortised cost:

Other financial Habilities 1.12 112 . " "
Tatal financial Habilities 1,12 1,12 - * -
As at 315t March, 2074 tarrying Amount Fair Value Level 1 Lovel 7 Lovel 3
Financlal assats

Financial imsteuments at smortised cost:

Cash and cash equivalants 0,34 0.3¢ - - -
Other bank balances 97.57 97.57 - - B
Qther Financlal Assets 0.29 0.25 - - -
Financlal fnstrurments at FYTOC):

Investment 1n

-Etpity Shares - Unguoted 16,444,460 16, 464,60 . 16, 444,60
Tatal financtal assets 14,562, 78 16,9632, 78 - - 16,464.60
Financlal labtities

Financial instruments at amortised Cost

Cther finunclal Uabilitles 1.12 1.2 - . » -
Totai fimancial labilities 1.22 1.12 - - 4

Note for Financial assets
The falr value of the financiel assets are datermined at the amaunt that would be received to sell an assst in an arderly. tranzstion,

market participants, Ty

%



N K Textile Industrles Limited
Huotes to Standatone Financlal Staternents for the year ended 375t March, 2029
All amounts in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Financial rigk managemant objectlves and palicles
The Cormpany’s finaneiat risk management Is an Integral part of how to plan and execute its husiness strategles. The Campany's financial sk

managetient policy is set by Its Senior Management.

Markot rate risk

Market sk it the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result fram a change In the price of a financial
instrument. The vatue of A financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest cates, foreign currency rates, equity prices
and ather market changes that affect market risk sensftive fnstruments. Market rish 15 actributable to all market rish sensitive financiat
Instruments including investments, deposits and forsign currency recelvables, payables, loans and bovrowings.

The Company manages markat risk thraugh (ts flnance department, which avaluates and exarcises tndependent contral over the entire
process of market risk management. The finance department recotnmends sk managament abjectives and policies, which are appraved by
Senior Management, The activitles of this department include management of cash resources, Implementing hedging strategles for foreign
Currency exposures, borrewing strategfes, and ensuring campliance with market risk timits and policles.

Interast rate risk
Interost rate risk fs the risk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a fihancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest in order to eptimize the Company's posttion with regards to interest Incame and interest expenses and to manage the fnterest rate
Fisk, the finance departraent undertakes the interest rate risk maragement exerclse from time to time.,

The Company i not exposed to sigaificant Interest rate as at the respective reporting dates,

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that, counter party may hot be able to settle their obiigations as agraed, To manage this, the Company

perlodically assesses the financial reliability of custormers, taking into account the financial condition, current econemic trends, and analysis
of histarical bad dabts and ageing of trade recetvablas.

The Company considers the probabllity of default upen initial recognition of asset and whether there has baen a significant increase in credit
risk on An engoing basis thraughaut each reporting perlod.

Finanzial assets are written off when there fs no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor fafting to engage 1n a repayment plan
with the Company. Where loans or recetvables have been wrtten aff, the Company cantfnues to engage in enfarcement activity to attempe to
recover the recefvable due, Whers recoveries are made, these are recognized fn profit or loss in the subsequent raporting period. The
managerment belioves that there are no significant exposure of credit sk due to the nature of company's buginess,

Liguidity rlsk
Liquidity risk s defined as the sk that the Campary will not be able to settle or meet its gbligation on time or at a reasonable price, The

Company's fimance personnel fs respansible for liquidity, funding as well a8 settlement management. In addition, processes and policias related
to such rishs are overieen by Seajor Management. Management monitors the Company’s net [fquldity position through rofling forecasts on the
basis of expected cash flows. '

In terms of owr report of aven date attachad Far and an behalf of the Board of Directors
For Kurmar Chaopra & Associates J

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No: 0007 31!;1{

Sunfl Agatwal Balbir Singh

Din - Director

DI We.000292B4 DIN No. 00027438
R.M. Aggarwal
Partner .
Membership No. 081510 ﬂh"t
Place! New Dethi
Pate: 17th May, 2025 topal Kumar Sharma Ankit Chaturvedi

Chief Financiat (Mficar & Company Secretary

Chfef Exeeutive Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITQRS® REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF N K TEXTILES INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of N K
Textiles Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company®) and
its subsidiary ( the holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the
group”) and its associate (Refer Note No 1(II) of the attached consolidated financial
statements) comprising of the Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March, 2025, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equily and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and material accounting policies information and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated finas”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate
financial statements/consolidated financial statemnents and on the other financial
information of the subsidiary and associate referred below m other matter
paragraph, the aforesaid consohidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including Indian accounting standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at
March 31, 2025, their consolidated profit and other comprehensive income,

consolidated changes in equity and their consohdated cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilifies for the Audit of the Consolidnted
financial statements section of our report. We are mdependent of the Group and its
assoclate in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial siatements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules

i n—._:_\

Lhereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responmbﬂmes in acp;g{

Branches . , . .
F-19, Angal Mega Mall, Kaushambhi, Ghaglabad (U.F.) - 201010, Tal. ; 0120-4331621

131, Qutab Plaza, DLF-l, Gurugram, Haryana - 122002, Tel. : +91-6818514428
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Kumar Chopra & Associntes N K Textiles Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants Consolidated Audit Report FY 2024-25

3,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Based on our checks and on the basis of
information and explanation [rom the management we have determined that there
are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information other than.the Conasolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the imformation mncluded in the
Board's Report including its Annexure and Shareholder’s Information but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s Report,

Our Opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover other
information and we do nol express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial staternent, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial staternents or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material
misstaternent therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged

with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statement in terms of requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial perforinance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group including its Associate in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and its Associate and for preventmg and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectvely for ensuring the -m:cl-ﬂr? cy.and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the pmpara}m AL p{:es\entauan of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and; nj are free from

s” R
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material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated finarcial statements by the Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate their respective enlilies or Lo cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its

associate are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Group and of its associate.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the Dbasis of these consolidated financial

staterments.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
mnaintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

# Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of net detecting a
material misstatement resulting frown fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involye collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

® Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls,

» Dvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and relat a.i.éﬁgﬂ

o %
management, fé e
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+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related fo events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue a3 a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
slatements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
suditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities within the Group and its associale to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audil
opinion.

Maleriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial

statemnents that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic

decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evalnate the cffect of any identified misstatements in the consohidated financial

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company

included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent

auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings thal we identify during our audil.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them, all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine

those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period and are therefore key aundit.matters. We describe
AT R b b .

wiat recludes public

Jrbumstances, we
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determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such commurication.

Other Matter

We did mnot audit the financial statements/consolidated financial
statemenls/financial information of one subsidiary (including its subsidiary), whose
financial staternents/ financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 90,259.87 lakhs
as at 31st March, 2025, total revenue of Rs. 20,270.28 lakhs and net cash outflows
amounting to Rs. 5.83 lakhs for the year ended on that date as considered in the
congolidated financial staternents. The consolidated financial statements also include
the Group’s share of net profit/ (Loss) of Rs 8,566.15 lakhs for the year ended 31st
March, 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial staternents in respect of one
associate whose financial statements / [inancial information have not been audited
by us. These financial statements/financial information have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financtal statements, in 80 far as il relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary, and our report in terms of
sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary is based solely on the reports of such other anditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on the legal
and regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit
of the aforesaid consolidated financial staterments.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statement have been kept so
far ag it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of other
auditors except for the matters stated in paragraph 8(1)(i)(vi) below on reporfing
wnder rule 11(3) as reported by an auditor of an Associate company.

¢. The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Staternent of Changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account mamtained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial staternents comply with the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

& On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of Lhe
Holding Company as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of
Direclors of the Holding Company and on the basis of the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary company and assogt o) 1y, none of
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the directors is disqualified as on 31t March, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the act:

. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding company and subsidiary company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure A",

g. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that in our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the group and
associate has not paid any managerial remuneration pursuant to provisions of
section 197 to the Act.

h. The remarks relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph B(T)(b) above on reporting under Section
143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 8(I)(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(g). _

i, With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The group and its associate do not have pending litigations, hence, there is
no impact on the consolidated financial position.

ii. The group and its associate do not have any material foreseeable losses on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary and associate.

iv. (i) The regpective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates, which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and the
other auditors of such subsidiaries and associate, respectively that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note No. 29 to the
consolidated financial staternents, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries, to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries, (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(ii) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates, which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and the
other auditors of such subsidiaries and associate, respeetively that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosedy ‘

"fé-
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1L

Place of signature: New Delhi
Date: 27.05.2025

v,

vi,

consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company or any of such subsidiaries, from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such
subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(it} Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the rmanagement representations
under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Clause (iv) above contan any material
misstatemnent,
The helding company and its subsidiaries and associates, which are
companies incorporated in India whose fmancial statements have been
audited under the Act has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.
Based on our examination which included test checks, and as communicated
by the respective auditor of subsidiaries and associate, the Holding Company
and its subsidiary, associate companies incorporated in India have used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective
software except that the auditor of an Associate company, has reported that audit
trail feature was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes.
Further, during our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with and audit trail has been preserved by the Group
as per statutory requirement, however the auditor of an Associate company,
has reported that preservation of audit trail as per statutory requirement was
not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

With respect to the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies |
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (CARO) issued by the Central Government in
terns of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, to be included in the
Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and

based on the CARQ reports issued by us for the Company and by the respective

auditors of the companies included in the consolidate financial statements, we
report that there are no gualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartereq Accountants
o (Firm Registrﬁt:on Nunfper: 000131N)

R. K. Aggarwal
Partner
(M. No 81510)

UDIN: 25081510BMMKPE4577

B-12, (G.F}
ALIND! COLONY
NEWDELHI -

Fage 7 of 10



Kumar Chopra & Associates N K Textiles Industries Limtted
Chartered Accountants Consolidated Audit Report FY 202425

ANNEXURE “A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph B(I)(f) of our report of even date on the consolidated financial

statemnents N K TEXTILES INDUSTRIES LIMITEI for the Year ended 31 March, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of consolidated financial statements of the N K TEXTILES
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the Holding Company”), aa of and for the year ended 31 March
2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and we have considered such similar reports of the
auditors of its subsidiaries and associate, which are companies incorporated in India, as of

that date.

Muanagement’s Responsibility for Internal Financigl Controls

The respective Board of Directors of Holding, its subsidiary and associate companies are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Pinancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of {rauds and errors, the accuracy
and comnpleteness of the accounting records, and the Hmely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements of Holding, its subsidiary and associate companies
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent apphcable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects. ‘

Qur audit involves performing procedures Lo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to consohidated financial staternents and their
operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial tygﬁﬂlﬂf}g\g}tb reference o
congolidated financial statements includes obtaining an undepsbrding ofihternal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statemerfts assespiiig\the risk that a

Page 8 of 10
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material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal conirol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors in term of their reports referred to in other matter paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statemenis.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statemments includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposilions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consclidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the consolidated financial statements,

Inherent Linutations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements

Because of the inherent' limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statemnents, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated. financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedurea may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and associate company have,
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2025 based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements criteria established by such companies cdnsidering the essential
components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note isgpedibythe ICAL

Lt
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Other Matter
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating

effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements in so far as it relates to one subsidiary (and subsidiary’s subsidiary) and
associate, which are the companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies.

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
irm Registration Number: 000131N)

v 12, {G.F) ;
(ALINDI GOLONY

NEWDELH MJ-
’ R. K. Aggarwal
Place of signature: New Delhi Partner
Date: 27.05.2025 (M. No 81510}

UDIN: 25081510BMMKDP 14577
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N K Textile Industries Limited
Consolidated Balapce Sheet as at31st March, 2015
All amounts in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Particulars Mote As at As at
315t March, A1st March,
2025 2024
ASSETS
Financial Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 2 4.15 16.11
- Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 3 1,018.58 1,059,396
- [nvestments 4 150,627.55 81,907.47
- Dther financial assets 5 27.66 39.06
151,677.04 #3,016.20
Non-finzncial assets
- Current tax assets (Net) 1.48 0.94
- Other non financial assets 7 6,37 6,37
7.85 7.31
Total assets 151,685,79 83,023.51
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial Liabflities
« Subordinated liabities 8 252,45 220,69
- Other financiat Habilities 9 1.80 2.6%
255,25 223.310
Hon Financial Liabitities
« Current tax ltabllities (net) ] “ 1.03
- Deferred tax liabilities (net) & 16,428.85 12,428.74
- Dther nan financial Habilities 10 0.42 0.12
16,429.27 12,429,89
Total liabilities 16,684.52 12,653.19
Equity
- Equity share capital 1 83.98 B3.98
- Other equity 12 117,469.01 61,050,35
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 117,352.99 61,134.33
Non Controlling Interests 17,448.28 9,215.99
Total equity 135,001.27 70,370.32
Total l{abilities and equity 1%1,685.79 B3,023.51
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial 1-33

Statements

In terms of our report attached
For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration NO: 000131N

512, {@.F)
LIND! COLONY
NEWORLHI -

R.K. Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No, 081510

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27th May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sunil Aggakyal
Director
DIN No.00029286

pa
Chief Financial Officer &
Chief Executive Officer

jol

Balbir Singh

Director
DIN No, 00027438

A

Ankit Chaturvedi
Compary Secretary



M K Textile Industries Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss far the year ended 31st March, 2025

All arounts in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Non cantrotling intersst

Particulars Mote For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 115t
March, 2025 March, 2024
Revenue from operations
Interest Incame 13 53.87 60.53
Dividend Income 14 726,74 427,43
Net Galn on fair vatue of financial instruments 15 19,4%6,24 -6,835.0%
Total Revenue from operations 20,276.8B5 7,323.00
. Other Income 16 0.02 0.06
Tatal Income 20,276.87 7.323.06
Expenses
Employee beneflt expenses 17 0.30 1.80
Finance Cost 18 31.64 27.86
Other expenses 19 13.78 a.37
Total Expenses 47.92 18.23
Profit before share of profit of assoclate and tax 20,218.95 7.,284.83
Add; Share of profit of associate (Refer Note 32) B,566.15 2,353,496
Profit after share of profit of associate but before tax 28,793.10 9,638.28
Tax expense:
Current tax for curant year 191.96 120.10
Current tax for prior perlod 0.09 (0.04)
Deferred tax 1,166.23 776,24
3,358.28 896,40
Profit far the period 25,436.82 8,741.86
Other comprehensive ingome
lterns that will not to be reclassified to profitor loss
(i) Galn/(Loss) on equity Instruments through other comprehensive 34,466.25 (12,893.91)
tncome
(i) income tax relating to ftems that are classified in other (833,p8) 2,930.12
comprehensive income
(fii) Share in OCI of associates 5,561.76 1,663 64
Total other comprehensive Income - (§+11) 39,194.13 (8,299.75)
Total comprehensive income for the period 64,630, 9% 442,13
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 20,821.28 7,009.50
4,675,594 1,792,138



Other Comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

Qwners of the Company
Mon cantrolling Interest

Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non controlling interest

Earninu‘per equity share (Face value par shara T 10/- aach) | 0

Basic- (T)
Diluted- {€)

Notes farming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 1-33

In terms of our report attached

Far Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration NO: 000131

Mool

R.K. Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No. 081510

v/ B2 (GF)
;LALLM GoLDNY
NEW DELH)

Place: Hew Dalhi
Date: 27th May, 2013

35,397.38
3,596.75

56,418.66
8,212.2¢9

2,479.22
2,4M.21%

{5,712.74)
(2,587.01)

1,296.76
(854.63)

B34.62
834.61

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Gopil Kumar Sharma
Chief Financial Qfflcer &
Chief Executive Offlcer

1°3

Director

DIN Ng. 00027438

ek

Ankit Chaturvedi
Company Secretary
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M K Textfle Industries Limited

Consolfdated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Al amounts in € Lakhs upless otherwise stated

Particulars

Fat the year

For the year

ended 315t ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Met profit/{loss) before tax 20,228.95 7,284,83
Adjustments;
Fair value changes of investments (19,496.24) {6,815.Q2)
Finance Cost 31.76 27.84
Operating profit before working capital chnnges 764,47 477,65
Working capital changes:
Change in other bank balances 40,98 (151.85)
Investrnent (made)/realised (629.68) {187.69)
Change in ather financial assets 11,40 {15,53)
Change in other non financial assets B, .
Change in other financial liabilities 0.19 (0.03)
Change in other non financial Hfabllities 0.30 (0,03)
Cash generated from operations 187.66 122,52
Direct Tax paid {193.62) {119.43)
Met cash flow from operating activities (A) (5.96) 3.09
B. Cash Flows from {nyesting activities (B) - -
C. Cash Flows from financing actlvities (C) . -
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + ) (5.96) 3.09
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10,11 7.02
Cash and cash equivalents at the and of the year 4.15 10,11
Components of cash and cash equivalents;
Cash and cheques on hand - -
With banks - In current account 4.15 10,11
4,15 10.11

Notes forming part of the Consol!dated Financial
Statements

in terms of our report attached
For Kumar Chopra & Associates

Charterad Accountants
Firm Registration NO: QO0131N

4 B-12, (G5)
AL COLONY Y.
NEWDELHI

R.K. Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No, 081510

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27th May, 2025
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Balbir Singh
Director
DIN No. 00027438
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Company Secretary



N K Textile Industries Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Note 1:

Corporate information

N.K. Textile industries Limited (‘the Company’) is a company limited by shares, incorporated in India on
9th February 1983. The Company is fully owned by Indian Shareholders. CIN of the Company is
L17299DL19B3PLC163230, The addresses of its registered office is Omaxe Square, Plot No. 14, 3rd Floor,
Jasola, New Delhi-110025. The Company is a listed, unregistered core investment Company (CIC) in terms
of Natification No. DNBR. PD.003/03.10,119/2016-17 dated 25th August, 2016 issued by RBI as amended.
Hence, the Company is not required to get Registration as Non-Banking Financial Company.

Basis of Consolidation and equity accounting

The consolidated financial statements Include financlal statements of the following subsidiaries and
associate of N K Textile Industries Lirmited, consolidated in accordance with Ind AS 110 ‘Consolidated
Financial Statements’ and ind As 28 ‘Investment in Associates and Joint Venture’. The consolidated
financial statements comprise financial statements of N K Textile Industries Limited (‘the Parent
Company') and its subsidiaries and associates {collectively, the ‘Group’) for the year ended 31 March,

2021,

Name of the cormpany Country of % of shareholding of | Consclidated as
Incorporation | Parent Company

Rajputana Developers India B1.88% Subsidiary
Limited (RDL)
Super Investment (India) India 82.61% Subsidiary
Limited - =

'(88.61% subsidiary of RDL)

- HMA Udyog Private India 40% Associate
Limited

Note: Consolidated financial statement of ROL were considered for consolidation

¥ Subsidiaries:
Subsidiaries are all entitles over which group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is obtained by the Group. They are

deconsolidated from the date the control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by ine adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, Income, expenses and cash flows. Offset {eliminate}
the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and parent’s portion of equity of
each subsidiary. Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealized gains or fosses on transactions
between Group companies are ellminated.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
consolidated statement of profit and loss, . splidated statement of change in equity and the
consolidated balance sheet respectively..




Iv.

Iv.

¥ Associate;
Assoclates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence [s the

power to participate in the financlal and operating policy decisions of the investee, bit is not control
aver those policies. This is generally the case where group holds between 20% to 50% of the voting
power, Investment in associates are accounted using the equity mathod of accounting, after initially

being recognised at cost.

Staternent of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the

Companles (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended,

Basis of preparation and presentation

a. Basis of preparation and presentation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {(lnd AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companles Act, 2013, read together with the Companies {Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting perfod, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price Is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

b. Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balance of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosures relating to
contingent liabilities,

The Management helieves that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent
and reasonable. Future resuits may differ from these estimates, Any revision to the accounting estimates
or difference between the estimates and the actual results are recognised In the periods in which the
results are known/materialise or the estimates are revised.

Material accounting policies

Revenue Racognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Revenue Is recognised

when (or as) Company satisfies 2 parformance obiigation by transferring promised goods and services,

Intarest Income
interest income on fixed deposits is accounted for on accrual basis.

Dividend income

1077



b. Cash Flow Statement
Cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method, whereby, profit/(ioss) before tax is adjusted

for the effects of transition of non cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
recelpts or payments. The cash flow from operating, investing, and financial activities of the Company
are segregated based on the available information.

¢. Exceptionai ltems
On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the

ordinary activities of the Company, is such that its disclosure improves an understanding of the
perfarmance of the Company. Such income or expense Is classified as an exceptiona! item and
accordingly disclosed in the Notes to Accounts.

d. Taxation

Current tax

Provision for current tax for the period s based on taxable income computed in accordance with the
provisions of the income-tax Act, 1961,

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for the year, Taxable profit differs from 'profit
before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and [tems that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Current Tax related to Other Comprehensive Income items are recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income schedule,

Deferred tax )

Deferred tax resulting from “temporary differences" between book and taxable profit is accounted for
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted as on balance sheet date. the deferred tax asset is
recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the asset will be
realised in future. Deferred tax that relates to items that are recagnised in other comprehensive income

is recognised in other comprehensive income,

€. Finance Costs
Finance costs comprise interest expense on loans and borrawings. Borrowlng costs that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction ar praduction of a qualifying asset are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss using effective interest rate (EIR}, Borrowing cost may include exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an

adjustment to interest costs.

f. Cashand cash equivalents
Cash camprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances
(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly llquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value,

g Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share Is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Dituted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to dilutive potential equity shares, If any.

h. Pprovisions

resnurces embodying economic benefits will be
te can be made of the amount of the obligation,

[Ray'S



The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting perfod, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation, When the provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount 1s the present value of those cash flows {when the effect of time
value is material),

j. Flnancialinstruments
A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrurnent of another entity.

Financial assets

Inltlal recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised Initfally at fair value plus, {(in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
Financlal assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for co!lectmg
contractual cash flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPP1} on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):
A financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if hoth of the following criteria are met unless the asset
Is designated at fair value through profit or loss under fair value option.

{a) The ohJective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial asset, and
{b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Financial assets at Fair Value Through Proflt or Loss (FVTPL):
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets, Any asset, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as'at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL,

Equity investments:

All equity investments, except investments In subsidiaries and associates and non current investment
in unquoted equlty shares, in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, with all changes
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. The investments in shares of subsidiaries and
associates valued at cost. Non current investments in unguoted equity shares are measured at fair
value, with all changes recognized in the other comprehensive income,

e o
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Derecaghition
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of simitar

financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e, removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

®  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

»  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a} the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (h) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash fiows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially al
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated llability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee aver the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment .
The company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses assoclated with its

assets carried at amortized cost and FVOC Instruments. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurerment

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as approprlate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initiatly at fair vatue and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabllities Include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, finarcial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financtal liabilitles at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial llabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financia! liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading If they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by ind AS 109,
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments.

Gains or Josses on Habilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are

satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, f; iﬁ?iﬁﬁ““gaQSI losses attributable to changes in own
\ . g [N
credit risk are recognized in OCi. These

g ™ not subsequently transferred to P&L.
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However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such [iability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financlal instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The falr value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
gither:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

llability
The principal or the most adventageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or fiability, assurning that market participants act in their economic

best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financia! statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that Is significant to the falr value measuremeant as a whole:

» level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement [s directly or Indirectly observable;

» Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the falr
value measurement is unobservable;

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting ﬁerfcd.

External valuers are involved, wherever required, for valuation of significant assets, such as properties
and ungquoted financlal assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement
of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Board of directors and the selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The
Board of directors, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation technlques
and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the bo
liabilities which are required




policies. For this analysis, the board of directors verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.
The board of directors, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liabllity with relevant external sources to determine whether the
change is reasonable,

For the purpase of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or llability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above. ‘

-



N K Taxtile Industeies Limited
Hotes to Consolldated Financial Statemants for the yaar ended 31st March, 2025

All amounts in € Lakhs unless otherwise stated

At at
315t March, 2025

As at

375t March, 2024

4 Cash and cavh equivalents
Galances with Barks ‘
- In current accounts 4,13 10.11
4,15 10.11
3 Bank balance ather than chsh and cash equivalents
Balabeds with Banhs
+ In fixed deposit with bank for a pariod more than 3 588,60 430,88
rmatiths but less than 12 menths
- b fixed deposits with ariginal pertod excesding 12 months 429,98 568,68
1,018.58 1,059,596
4 Invastrments
Face Az at 313t March, 2023 A at 31st March, 2014
Value Quantity T In Thousands Quantity T in Thausands
(1}  Finapclal Instrumants falr valued through Othar
Comprehensive Income
Fully pafd up Equity Shares- Unguoted
« Madl Industries Limited 10 1,700 4.56 1,700 5.08
= Indafil Industries Limited 10 1,837,500 45,6082.41 1,837,900 29,216,325
- Agache Assnciates Limited (Formarly Known as Willot 6,250 1.74 6,250 1.47
{India) Lirhited)
- International Research Park Lab Limited 10 17,500 55.93 17,500 110.91
+ K.K.Modf nvestrent and Pinancial Serviees Pyt. Lirniled i0 17,819 1,470.37 37,819 16,153.6%
Indafit Industries Limited (Current. year: Fully paid up; 10 204,154 5,184,912 204 166 1,870.58
Previaus year: Partly paid up % BD {including share premtum
77/+per share) .
83,401.89 48,559.98
()} Finanglal Instruments falr valuad through profit and loss
Equity Shares- Quated
- Modgi Rybber Limited 10 124,007 13187 126,007 114.39
- Modi Pan Limited 10 440,334 1978 460,124 187.54
- Godfrey Phillips tndfa Limited z SLY,260 35,857.80 527,260 16,281,216
- REWM Limitect 10 1,470 5.80 1,4 4.52
- Bhilwara Technlcal Taxtiles Limited 10 84 0.34 b4 0.45
- Vardhaman Taxtiles Lim{ted 10 480 o.17 6640 0.25
- Yardhman Spectal Steols Limited 1 116 .13 114 0,26
Mutual Funds
= lIFL, {india Hausing Fund} 10 994,097.70 47,92 994,451.,13 57.16
« HSBC Iiquid Tund Direct Plan- Growth 10 B,520.41 110.20 8,520.41 205.00
= Nippon India Liguid Fund - Treasury Plan - Direct Growth 10 741291 471,11 7.411.91 418.52
Plan
- ABSL Money Manager Fund - Direct Growth Plan 10 174,977,201 £41.04 101,644.0% 346,39
Prefarence Sharas- Unquoted
Rajputana Infrastructure Corporate Limited 10 1,000,000 47.80 21,000,000 471,40
4.15% Non cumnulative, non ctnvertible, radesmable
preference shares
37,416.50 17,676.24
(i) Investrent Ih assoclate accounted as por aquity mathod
Fully patd up Equity Shares- Unquated
= HMA Udyog Privats Limited 10 400,000 29, 799,16 400,000 13,671.15

Investment In India
Invastment outside India
Total Investment

130,627,556

150,827.53

150,627,595
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N K Textile Industries Limited .
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the yoar ended 31st March, 2025
Al arnounts in T Lakhs uhless otherwlse stated

As at As at
31t March, 315t March,
1025 2024
5 Other financial assets
Securty depasits 0.10 0.10
Intarest accrued on fixed deposits 27.56 18,94
i7.66 39,016
b Income Taxes
a. Current tax Assets and Liabilities
Particutars As at As at
it March, 315t March,
1015 2024
Current tax assets
Income tax pafd (Net of proviston for taxation) 1,48 0.94
1.48 0.94
Current tax Habilities
Provision for tax (net of advance income tax) - 1.01
. 1.03

b, Components of Income Tax Expense/(incoma)

For the year

For the year

Particulars
ended 35t ended 3ist
March, 2028 March, 1024
Recognised in Statement of profir and loss
Current tax for current year 191.54 120.10
Current tax for earlier vesr 0.09 (0.04)
Deferred tax 3,146,23 776,34
3,158.28 896.40
Recognised In Other comprehensive theome (333.88) 2,930.12
Deferred tax {B33.88) 2,930.12

¢. Reconciliation of Efective Tax Rate

Reconciliation of taxes to the amount complited by applylng the statutory income tax rate to the Income before taxes s

summarised below;

Particulars For the yaar For the yaar
. . ended 315t wnded 31st
March, 2013 March, 2024
Profit/ {Loss) before Tax 20,228,95 7,284.8)
Applicable tax rates in india 25.17% 25.17%
Camputed Tax Charge 5,091.22 1,813.45
Tax effect of falr value adjustments {1,740.58) (943.89)
Tax effect on permanent non deductible expenses/income 8.0 7.0t
Tax effect of earliar year tax 0.09 0.04)
Tax effect of brought forward losses adjusted (0.46) {0.12)
Tax effect of others - 0.01
Income Tax Expense at effective rate 16.6% (Previous Year 12.31% } 1,358,285 A96.40

Vi
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N K Textile Industries Limited

Hotes to Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023
All amounts tn & Lakhs unless otherwize stated

10

d. Deferred Tax balances alang with movement are as foilows:

Partfculars Qpening balance Recognised In Recognfsed in Closing balance
statement of profit other
ahd loys comprehensive
fncome
For the year ended 315t March, 2025
Deferred Tax Liabilities on:
Investment n equity instruments 12,228.01 1,100.72 8331.88 16,162.61
tnvestment fn mutual funds 19.40 24.85 + 44,34
Compound financial instruments 210,11 {7.99) - 222,12
Deferred Tax Assets on:
Investment in preference shares 45.07 (48,85} . 0,22
17,428,74 3,166.23 B11.88 16,4268.85%
For the year ended 31st March, 1024
Deferred Tax Liabilities on:

- Investment, in equity instruments 14,382.83 775.30 (24,9301 12,228.01
Investment in mutual funds 10.38 9.3 . 19.69
Compound financial instruments 23712 {7.01) - 230.11
Deferred Tax Assets on:

Ivestment In preference shares 47.81 1.26 - 40,07
Defarred tax Habilities{net) 14,582.52 776.34 {2,910,12) 12,A18.74
As at As at
st March, 313t March,
2025 2024
Other Mon Financlal Assets
Advance glven to a party 6.37 6.37
6,17 6,37
Subordinated Habilities
&%, non curmulative, non convertible, redeemable Preference shares 252.45 220.69
152,45 220,69

Other flnanclal liabilities
Audit Fees Payable 1.07 1.4
Other payables 1.73 1.50

2.80 2.61

Other Non Financlal Lisbllities
Statutory dues Q.42 Q.12
0,12




N K Textile Industries Limited
Moetes to Consolidated Financiat Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025
All amounts in ¥ Lakhs tinless otherwise stated
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1.2

1.4

Equity Share Capital

Authorized

Equity Shares of Re 10/- each
Preferenca Shares of Rs. 10/- each

fusued, subscribeed 8 pajd up caplal
Equity Shares of Re 10/- each

Terms and rights attached to equity shares:

As at 113t March, 2025

A at 315t March, 2024

Number of T in Lakhs Number of % in Lakhs
shares Sharas
1,000,000 100.00 1,000,000 100.00
500,000 50.00 500,000 50.00
1,300,000 150,00 1,500,000 130,00
p319,832 81.98 839,832 LERT]
839,832 . 81,58 839,832 83.98

The Campany has fssued anly one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 por share, Equity Shares entitles the holder to participate in
dividends, and te share in the proceeds of winding up of the Company in proportion to the number of and amounts pald on the shares held after

distributlon of all praferentfal amounts.

Each hoider of equity shares 15 entitled to one vole per share,

The Company deciares and pays dividends in Indlan rupees. The dividend If any, proposed by the Board of Directors fs subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting axcept in case of interim dividend. '

Recanciilation of number of shares and amount outstanding & the beginning and at the end of the reporting parlad:

As Bt 31st Macch, 2025 As at 313t March, 2024

Particulars

Number of % in Lakhs Humber of & in Lakhs
Shares Shares
Equity Shares cutstanding at the baginning of the year 819,832 B2.98 839,832 81,98
Subscription money received during the year 4 - - .
Fquity Shares outstanding at the end of the year [XLN-EF] 83,98 AY9 812 A1.98
Details of Equity shareholders holding mare than 5% shares (n the Company:
Hame of shareholder As nt 315t March, 2025 k] arch, 2024
: Humber of % in Lakhs Mumber of % in Lakhs
Shares Shares
K. K. Modi Investment, & Financlal Services Pyt Ltd 373,012 44.42% 373,012 44.42%
HMA Udytrg Private Limited 250,000 19.71% 150,000 n.77%
Azure Prodcts Private Limited 98,720 11.75% . 4,720 11.75%
Marayan Sales Private Limited 40,050 7.15% 40,050 7.15%
Trend Agencies Private Limited 57,950 &.90% 57,930 6.90%
Detafls of shares held by promoters
Ag at 31ist March, 2025 _ )
Number of  Change during  Numbér of % of total X Change
Name of the pramoter shares as at the year sharas as at shares  during the
. 01.04.1024 31,03, 2025 yerar
K.K.Modi Investment & Financial Services Pvt Ltd 373,012 373,012 A4.42% 0.00%
Hma Udyog Private Limitod 250,000 - 250,000 8778 0.00%
Az at 313t March, 2024
) Number of  Change during Mumber of % Hotding % Change
Hatow of the promoter shares as at the year’'  shares as at during the
01.94.2023 31,03, 2024- ‘ yoar
N, K.modl Investment & Financfal Services Py Led 373,012 373,017 44,42% 0,00k
HMA Udyoeg Private Limited 250,000 250,000 19.77% 0.00%
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N K Textile Industries Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
All amounts in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwlse stated
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121
12,2
12.2

12.4

12.5

{n
(i

(1)
(iv)

{(v)

Other equity

Equity component of Compound financial instruments
General reserve

Statutory reserve

Retalned Earning

Equity tnstruments through Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments
QOpening Balance

General reserve
Qpening Balance

Statutary reserve
Opening Balance

Retained Earninga
Opening balance
Add : Net profit/{Loss} far the year

Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance
Add: Qther Comprehensive Income for the year

As at As at
31st March, 3st March,
2025 2024
648,27 648.27
239.71 29.71
0.48 0.48
43,329.35 22,508.07
73,251.20 37,653.82
117,469.01 61,060.,35
648,27 648.27
239.71 239.71
0.48 0.48
22,508.07 15,498.57
20,8121.28 7,009,50
43,329.35 22,508.07
17,651.82 43,366.56
25,597.33 (3,712,74)
73,251,20 17.653.82

The descriptien of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows :
Equity Companent of Compound Financial Instruments: It represent restdual amount after deducting liability

compaonent from the fair value of the compound financial instruments.

General Reserve: Amount set aside from retained earnings as a reserve to be utilised for permissibile general

purposes as per law.

‘

Statutory Reserve; Statutory Reserve created under section 45-1C of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Retained Earnings: It represents the surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss and appropriations.

FYTOCI: The fair value change of the equity instruments measured through Other Comprehensive ncame {3
recognised and reflected under Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income. On dispasal, the
cumulative fair value changes on the sald instruments are reciassified to Retained Earnings.
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N K Textile Industries Limited
Mates to Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Alt amounts in T Lakhs unless otherwise stated

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Interest Income
Interest income from FDR

Bividend Income

On Equity Investments measured at FVTOCI
On Equity Investments measured at FYTPL

Net Gain on Falr Yalue Changes
On instruments measured at FVTPL

Equity Shares.
Preference Shares
Mutual Fund

Fair value changes
Realised
Unrealised

Other Income
Interest on Income Tax
Miscellaneous fncome

Employee benefit expenses

Salary

Finance Cost

Interast on Compound Finandial Instruments

{nterest on income tax

Other Expansas

Rent paid
Advertisermnent
Payment to auditor
Custodian/Dmat Charges
Listing fee

Legal & prof charges
Canveyance Expenses
Conference Expenses
EDP Charges

Misc Expenses

he

For the year

For the year

ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
53.87 60,55
53.87 60,55
245.00 189.87
481,74 217.56
726.74 427,43
19,408,45 6,771.74
6.40 . 7.00
B1.39 56,28
19, 496.24 6,815.02
19,496,324 & 835.02
19,496, 24 6,835.02
.02 0.05
. 0.01
0,02 0.06
0.30 1.80
0.30 1.80
376 17.84
0.08 0.02
31.84 17.86
1.56 1.56
an 0.1
1.71 1.53
0.5 0.74
0.65 0.645
10.02 2.80
0.1
0.16
Q.47
8.57




N K Textile industries Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

All amounts in T Lakhs unless otherwise stated

20 Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 regarding earnings per shara:

Amount in ¥ Lakhs

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 315t
March, 2023 March, 2024
Profit for the year 20,821.28 7,009.50
Weightage average number of shares {for 839,832 819,832
Basic/diluted)
Face Value per share (T} 10 10
Earnings per share-Basic (T) 2,479,212 834,63
farnings per share-Diluted (%) 2,479.22 834,63

21 There are no contingent liabilities as on Batance Sheet date.

22 Committement for uncalled labilfties on Partly Paid-up Equity Shares is NIL (Previous year ¥ 375.67 Lakhs).

13 Disclosures of transactions with related party as requfrad by Ind AS- 24

Name of Related parties and nature of relationships;

M Name of related party
Hma Udyag Private Limited

Relationshi
Associate of the Company

1 K. K. Madi Investment & Financlal Services Pvt Entity of which Company is an associate

Ltd

5  Key Management Personnel (K.MP} of Cornpany:

Mr. Sunil Agarwal

Mr. Balbir Singh

Mr, Rajeev Kapoor

Mr. Pumit Kumar Chellaramani
Ms. Anshu Maheshwari

Mrs, Beenu Agarwal

Mr. 5anjay Kumar Gupta
Mr. Gopal Kurmar Sharma
Mr. Surfndra Kapoor
Ankit Chaturvedt

Transactions with related party during the year:

1 Salary to Mr, Surindra Kapoor
2 Conveyance to Ms. Anshu Maheshwari

There are no outstanding balances as at year end.

Director

Director

Independent Director (w.e.f. 13th August, 2024)
Independent Rirector {(w,e.f, 7th November, 2024)
Director {w.e.f. 7th November, 2024)

independent Director (ceased w.e.f. 7th November,
2024)

Independent Director (ceased w.e.f. T4th November,
2024)

Chief Financial Officer & Chief Executive Officer
{w.e.f. 13th August, 2024}

Chief Financizal Officer & Chief Executive Officer
(ceased w,e.f. 11th June 2024)

Company Secretary

¥ in Lakhs
For the year Far the year
ended 31st ended 315t
March, 2025 March, 2024
0.30 1.30
0.05




N K Textile Industrios Limited
Huotes to Consolidated Financlal Staterments for the year ended 315t March, 2025

Al amaunts in T Lakhs unless otherwise stated

4

15

16

Tire Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next few manths and of the recoverability of carrying vaiues of its atsets
comprising of investments as at the Balance sheet date, and based on the internal and external information upto the dete of appraval of these
financtal statements including econamic forecasts, has concluded that no materiat adjustments are required to be made in the financiai results, The
Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used herafn.

Bagad an the current Indicators of future scanomic conditions, the Campany axpects to recover the carrylng amount of these assets, The company is
of thar opinion that there Is certainty that company will be able to meet its all-financial commitments in next ong year,

The Government of indla has changed income tax rates on long term capital from 23.296% with indexation benefit to 14.30% without Indexation
benefit on ungusted Investments w.e.f Assessment Year 2025-2¢. The change In rate has resuited in raduction of deferred tax on OCI ltems of R,
4,094.79 Lukhs and the current ysar deferred tax chacge on OC) ltems ag per new rates is amounting to Rs. 4,92B.87 Lakhs. The net impact of these
two has been shown on the fate of Statement of Profit and Loss under Other comprehensive income as daferred tax charge of Rs. 833,88 Lakhs,

Financial instruthents

Fair value hiararchy

The Group determines falr values of Its financial fnstrumaents according to the following hlerarchy:

Level 15 Valuation based on quoted market price: finanical instruments with guoted prices for identlcal Instruments in active markets that the

Cornpany can access at the measurement date.,

Level 2: Valuation based on using obaervable inputs: financial instruments with quotad prices for similar Instruments n active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments and flnancial instruments valuad using modets where all significant inputs are observable,

Level 3: Valuatlon techriqua with sigeificant unobservable fmputs: financial instruments valued using valuatlon techniques where ong or more
significant inputs are unobservable. Equity mvestrments designated under FYTOCH has beon valued using the astet approach valuation techntque,

The following table provides an analysis of financlal {nstruments that are measured at fale value and have been grouped Into Leval 1, Level 2 and

Lavel 3 below:

As at Carrying Amaunt Falr Value Level 1 Leval 2 Lavei 1
J1st March, 2028

Financial aszats

Financial instrumants st amortised cost:

Cash and cash equivalents 4.15 4,15 -

Other bank balancas 1,018.58 1,018.58 . .
Other Financial Assets 27.84 .66

Financial instruments at FYTPL;

Investment in

=Equity Shares 35,996.12 35,996.12 35,996.12 .
-Prefarence Share 47.80 47.80 . A7.60
~Mutual Funds 1,182,58 1,3682.58 1,382,58 -
Firancial fnstruments at other

comprehensiva fncome:

Investment in

«Equity Shares - Unquoted B3,401.89 83,401.89 n 82,401.89
Tatal financial assats 121,878.78 121,878.78 IT,374.70 ‘ B3,449.69
Firancial Habliitdes

Financial fnstruments at amottised cose:

Other fnancial labilities .80 1.80 . -
Financlal Instruments at FYTPL:

Subordinated labilities 252.45 252,45 . -
Total finunctal labilittas 285.29 235,25 - -
ha at Carrylng Amount Falr Value Level 1 Level 2 Lavol 3
31at March, 2024
‘Financial assets

Finarcial instruments at amortised gost;

Cash and cash equivalents 10.11 111 .

Other bank balancas 1,059.5¢ 1,089.56 - .
Other Financial Assets 39,08 0.06

Firnancial instrurnents at FyTRL:

Investment in

-EQuity Sharet -Quotad 16,587.67 16,587.67 16,387,47

-Preference Share 4140 41.40 -

| 0




N K Textlle Industries Limited
Hotes te Consolidated Financial Statements for the your enced 315t March, 2025
Al ampunts in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated

-Mutual Funds 1,047.17 1,047.147 1,047.17 .

Financial instruments at ather
camprehensive Wncome:

Tivistrrent in

-Equity Shares - Unquoted 48,559.98 48,559.98 - - 48,559.90
Total flnancial assets 67,344.95 67, 144,98 17,634,084 - 48,601.38
Financlal llablifties

Financial tnstrumeants at amortised cost:

- Other financlal Liabibities 2.81 .61 u - -
Financlal instruments at FYTPL:

Subordinated labdlities 120.49 220,69 . - -
Total financial (fabilitles 223,30 211.10 - w -

Note for Financial assets
The fair value of the financial assets are determined at the amount that would be received to sell an asset In an ordarly transaction batween market

particicpans.

8 Financial risk managemant objectives and poticles
The Group’s financiul risk maragement s an integral part of how to plan and execute its businass strategles. The Graup's firancial risk management

policy 15 set by itd Senior Management.

Market rate risk
Market risk is the risk of loss of futiire earnings, falr values or future cash flows that cmay result from a change in the price of & financial instrument.

The value of a financial instrument may change 45 A result of changes in the Interest rates, farelpn currency rates, equity prices and other market
changes that affect market rish sansitive Instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market rfsk sensitive financial fnstruments fncluding
tnvestments, deposits and forelgn currency recefvables, payables, toans and borrowings.

The Group manoges market risk through fts finance department, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of
rmarket risk management. The finance department recammands risk management objectives and pollcies, which are appraved by Samor Management.
The activitios of thik department inctude munagarment of cash resources, fmplementing hedging strategles for forelgn currency expasures, Berrgwing
strategles, and ensuring comiptfanee with market fsk Lmits and policies.

nterast rate risk
Interest rate rish is the risk that the fair value or future cash Flows of a financial inetrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest in

order to optimize the Group's pofition with regards to Interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, the finance
department undertakes the trterest rate risk managernent exercise from time to time.

The Group Is not exposed to significant fnterest rate as at the respactive reporting dates.

Credit risk
Cradil risk arises from the pussib!llty that counter party may not, bo able to settle thelr obligations as agreed. Te mannge this, the Group petindically

assesses the Mrancisl reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current econamic trends, and analysls of historical bad
debts and agelng of trade recelvables,

Tne Group considers the probatdlity of default upon Inftial secognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
angoing basts throughout edch reporting period,

Financlal assets are writtan off when there (= no reasonable expectatfon of recovery, such as x debtor failing to engage n a repayment plan with the
Company. Where loans or recetyables have been written off, the Company cantinues to engage in enforcernent activity to attempt to recover the
recelvable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised 1o profit or loss in the subsequent reparting period, The management, belleves that
there are no sigrficant exposure of credit risk due to the nature of company's business,

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the rigk that the Group will not be able to sottle or meet Its obligation on (ime or at & reasonable price. The Pargmt

Company’s and fts Component’s finance dapartment is respansible for (quidity, funding as well as settternent management, In addition, procasses and
policies related to such risks are overseen by respective Senfor Maragement, Mansgement monitors the Compaay's net Uquidity position through

rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. ez
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